PLEASE CHECK THE TOWN WEBSITE (WWW.BRIDGTONMAINE.ORG) FOR MEETING CANCELLATION NOTICES.
BRIDGTON BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING AGENDA

DATE: Tuesday, June 14, 2022
TIME: 4:30 P.M.

PLACE: Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Room, 10 Iredale Street, Bridgton
Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone.
https://www.gotomeet.me/BridgtonMaine/bos
You can also dial in using your phone.
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679
United States: +1 (571) 317-3116
Access Code: 189-387-141
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/189387141

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

4:30 P.M. Executive Session per MRS Title 1. Section D: Discussion of Labor Contracts

5:00 P.M. Action Items Following Executive Session
a. Agreement Between Town of Bridgton and Public Works Department

Approval of Minutes
a. May 24, 2022

Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items (Each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes.)

Committee/Liaison Reports

Correspondence, Presentations and Other Pertinent Information

a. 4H Exemption, Discussion with Assessor’s Agent
New Business
a. Awards and Other Administrative Recommendations
1. Supplemental Assessments as Recommended by the Assessor’s Agent
2 Amendments to Personnel Policy:
a. Juneteenth Day

b. Personal Days
b. Permits/Documents Requiring Board Approval
1, Pondicherry Park Access Easement over LEA Property
2 Consent of Beano/Bingo Permit to St. Joseph Men & Women’s Club
3. Request to Use Town Owned Property on August 20, 2022 for Dog Days of Bridgton
4. Victualer’s Licenses
a. Ricky’s Diner, 257 Main Street
b. The Gazebo, 56 Portland Road
c. The Black Horse Tavern, 26 Portland Road
& Marijuana Establishment License Application from Sweet Dirt for an Adult Use
Marijuana Store Located at 1 Beaver Creek Farm Road

Board of Selectmen Page 1 of 2 June 14, 2022



10.

1.

12,

13.

14.

C. Selectmen’s Concerns

d. Town Manager’s Report/Deputy Town Manager’s Report

Old Business (Board of Selectmen Discussion Only)

a. Wastewater Status Update

Treasurer’s Warranis

Public Comments on Non-Agenda ltems (Each speaker may be limited fo 3 minutes.)

Dates for the Next Board of Selectmen’s Meetings

June 28, 2022

Adjourn

Board of Selectmen

Future Agenda Items:

1. Workshop for Review of Committees

2. Discussion of Use of Trademark by Commercial Entities

Page 2 of 2

June 14, 2022



Town Manager’s Notes
Board of Selectmen’s Meeting
June 14, 2022
1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Executive Session
Motion: Move to go into Executive Session pursuant to MRS 1 §D, Union Contracts.
Motion: Move to come out of Executive Session.
4. Motion: Move to ratify the Agreement between the Town of Bridgton and Public
Works Department effective from July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2025.
5. Approval of Minutes
a. May 24, 2022
Suggested motion: Move to approve the May 24" Meeting Minutes.
7. Committee/Liaison Reports
8. Correspondence, Presentations and Other Pertinent Information
a. The Assessor’s Agent will be discussing the 4H Application for a tax exemption
on the Magic Lantern property.
9. New Business
a. Awards and Other Administrative Recommendations
1. For your approval, please see a real estate tax supplemental being
recommended by the Assessor’s Agent. The provided information notes the
requested supplemental value/tax.
Suggested Motion: Move to approve the recommended June 14, 2022, tax
supplemental totaling $34,669.12.
2. Tamrequesting three (3) revisions to the Town of Bridgton Personnel Rules
and Regulations. The first is to Article 7.1 and changes Finance Officer to
Director, Water Reclamation Supervisor to Director, and adds Health Officer.
In keeping consistent with the two collective bargaining agreements, Article
25,1 adds Juneteenth. Lastly, I am requesting the Article 27.1 be changed from
five (5} years to (3). Please refer to the red-lined document in your binder.
Suggested Motion: Move to revise the Personnel Policy as requested.
b. Permits/Documents Requiring Board Approval
1. Members of the Board had requested, as part of approving updating the trail, a
right of way to access Pondicherry Park from the parking lot on Willett Road.
Please see easement in your binder.
Suggested motion: Move to approve the Recreation Trail Easement on land of
Lakes Environmental Association.
2. St. Joseph’s Men’s and Women’s Club has applied for consent to operate
Beano/Bingo games. Please see the application in your binder.
Suggest motion: Move to grant consent to St. Joseph's Men's and Women'’s
Club fo operate Beano/Bingo games.
3. Nate Sunday has applied to hold an event on the grounds of the Bridgton
Community Center. Dog Days would be held August 20" from 1-4pm.
Neighboring businesses have been surveyed and no issues raised. Please refer
to the application and emails in your binder.
Suggested motion: Move fo approve Dog Days on August 20" from 1-4pm.
4. Business licenses:
a. Victualer’s License to Ricky’s Diner.

RAP, Jr. 1 TM Notes



Suggested motion: Move to approve a Victualer’s License to Ricky’s
Diner.
b.Victualer’s License to The Gazebo.
Suggested motion: Move to approve a Victualer’s License The Gazebo.
c.Victualer’s License to The Black Horse Tavern.
Suggested motion: Move to approve a Victualer’s License (o The Black
Horse Tavern.
5. Sweet Dirt has applied for a Marijuana Establishment License for an Adult Use
Marijuana Store.
Suggested motion: Move lo approve Marijuana Establishment License for an
Adult Use Marijuana Store for Sweet Dirt.
10. Old Business
a. Wastewater Update

RAP, Jr. 2 TM Notes



Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes
May 24, 2022; 4.00 P.M.

Board Members Present: Carmen E. Lone, Chairman; Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice-Chairman;
Robert J. McHatton, Sr.; Paul A. Tworog; G. Frederick Packard
Administration Present: Town Manager Robert A. Peabody, Jr.; Deputy Town Manager Georgiann Fleck; Deputy

Town Clerk Jamie L. Ferguson; Executive Assistant Nikki Hodgkins; Community Development Director Linda LaCroix,
Deputy Community Development Director Victaria Hill; Police Chief Phil Jones; Code Enforcement Officer Brenda Day;
Deputy Finance Director Jenna Domer; Public Works Foreman Jason Thompson

1. Cali to Order
Chairman Lone called the meeting to order at 4.00 P.M.

2. Pledge of Allegiance
The Board recited the “Pledge of Allegiance.”

3. 4:00 P.M. Executive Session per MRS Title 1 Section 405.6.E. for Consultation with Legal

Motion was made by Vice-Chairman to move to executive session; second from Selectman Packard.
5 approve/0 oppose

4, Action Items Following Executive Session
There were no action items following executive session.

5. Approval of Minutes
a. May 10, 2022

Motion was made by Selectman McHatton to approve the May 10, 2022, minutes; second from Vice-Chairman
Zaidman. 5 approve/0 oppose

6. Public Comments on Non-Agenda ltems
There were no public comments on non-agenda items.

7. Committee Liaison Reports
There were no Committee Liaison reports.

8. Correspondence, Presentations and Other Pertinent Information

a. Bridgton Harvest Moon Festival

Pam Ward presented a map of the proposed area to be used. She had previously met with Sargent Muise, who
approved the traffic flow. She went over the presented map in detail. Chairman Lone asked if Ms. Ward had spoken to
Downeast Energy and The Magic Lantern and she reported that both approved the plan for half of their parking area to
be reduced. Ms. Ward said ali the businesses located in that area are aware of the plan and are ok with it, however they
are still waiting to hear from Reny’s regarding where the road closure will begin. Motion was made by Selectman
McHatton to approve the application for the Bridgton Harvest Moon Festival if all town requirements are met, and the
insurance does not to exceed $2,500; second from Vice Chairman Zaidman. The Board discussed the budget. 5 approve/
0 oppose

9, Public Hearing to hear public comment on the following questions that will be presented to the voters via referendum
ballot June 14%, 2022:

Question 1. Shali an ordinance entitled “Town of Bridgton Senior Tax Assistance Ordinance,” be enacted?
{Note: Copies of the text of this ordinance are available from the Town Clerk.} Board of Selectmen recommend a YES
vote.

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 1 of5 May 25, 2022



Question 2.  Shall an ordinance entitied “Town of Bridgton Ordinance Establishing a Moratorium on
Commercial Solar Energy Facilities,” be enacted? (Note: Copies of the text of this ordinance are available from the Town
Clerk.) Board of Selectmen recommend a YES vote.

Deb Brusini, Planning Board Chair, made a comment that the Planning Board put this forward and is in support
of it. Ms. Brusini clarified the reason for the Ordinance is to ensure that solar farms with undesirable characteristics do
not come under Planning Board review prior to completion of solar farm specific standards.

Question 3. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Amendments to Bridgton Land Use Code and Official Shoreland Zoning
Maps to Correct Errors and Add a Limited Commercial (LC) Shoreland Zoning District,” be enacted? (Note: A “Yes” vote
will enact the ordinance entitled, “Amendments to Bridgton Land Use Code and Official Shoreland Zoning Maps to
Correct Errors and Add a Limited Commercial {LC) Shoreland Zoning District,” and wilf change the zoning of some
properties or portions of certain properties from the Limited Residential (LR} shoreland zoning district to the Limited
Commercial (LC) shoreland zoning district. Copies of the text of the ordinance, including the current and proposed
Official Shoreland Zoning Maps, are available from the Town Clerk.) Board of Selectmen Recommend a YES vote,
Deb Brusini clarified that this ordinance is to help return lots on the inner and outer quarter to commercially zoned. This
is business friendly and Bridgton friendly.

A member of the public asked for clarification on the shoreland zoning aspect of the ordinance. Ms. Brusini
clarified that it is pertaining to the wetlands in the area.

Question 4. Do you favor voting on all business to be transacted at future annual town meetings by secret ballot
election rather than traditional in-person town meeting? (Note: This is a non-binding advisory question.)

A member of the public noted that we have always had an in-person town meeting since 1794 and impressed
the importance of the one time of year that the public can come together and engage in discussion. He also expressed
that if the town meeting should be voted down, it should be done in person and not through a ballot. Chairman Lone
clarified that this is just an advisory question and will not determine anything. Town Manager Robert Peabody also
spoke to the attendance level of the Town Meeting and public involvement. Bridgton resident loe Gallinari made it
known he is not in favor.

10. New Business
a. Awards and Other Administrative Recommendations
1. Maine Municipal Association’s Legislative Policy Committee Nomination Form

This item will be added to a future agenda.

2. Ratification of Bridgton Patrol Association Collective Bargaining Agreement.

Town Manager Robert Peabody stated they did meet in executive session and that it was a robust negotiating
session. He thanked the union and their representatives for their part in a productive meeting. Mr. Peabody stated the
agreement has been ratified by the Union and he brings it before the Board now for ratification. Motion was made by
Selectman McHatton to ratify the agreement; second from Selectman Packard. 5 approve/0 oppose

3. Appointment of Brenda Day as Local Health Officer
Selectman McHatton asked Ms. Day if she will have the time to take on this roll in addition to her present role as
CEO. Town Manager Peabody informed the Board of the certification and training she has already received for the role of
Local Health Officer. Motion was made by Selectman McHatton to appoint Brenda Day as the Local Health Officer; second
from Selectman Tworog. The Board brought up concerns about Ms. Day’s ability to balance the large workloads of both
roles and potential conflicts of interest between the two roles. These concerns were addressed by Ms. Day, as well as
Deputy Town Manager Georgiann Fleck. 4 approve/1 opposed {Selectman Tworog was opposed)

4. Draft 2024 Comprehensive Plan, Presentation of Task Force Mission and Charge, and Task Force
Applicants
Community Development Director LaCroix listed off the applicants and clarified the purpose of the Task Force and
the difference between the Task Force and the Advisory Committee. Ms. LaCroix addressed several questions from the
Board regarding how the task force will operate. Task Force applicant Molly Barker spoke to the Board about how the task

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5 May 25, 2022



force will help reach underserved members of our community. Motion was made by Chairman Lone to approve the 2024
Comprehensive Plan Update Task Force Charge, Mission, and Authority Document; second from Vice-Chairman Zaidman.
5 approve / 0 oppose Motion was made by Chairman Lone to appoint the Task Force members as presented; second from
Selectman Tworog. Vice-Chairman Zaidman asked why the applications differ to which Ms. LaCroix explained that some
were completed on the document itself and some were completed onfine. 5 approve / 0 oppose

5. 2022 -2023 Salmon Point Budget
Town Manager Peabody recognized Deputy Finance Director Jenna Domer’s job well done and welcomed Scott
Cushing back for another year. Mr. Peabody outlined the budget and stated that the revenue does indeed cover the
expenses, Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman to approve the 2022 — 2023 Salmon Point Budget; second from
Chairman Lone. 5 approve / 0 oppose

h. Permits/Documents Requiring Board Approval
1. Victualer’s Licenses
a. Nora Belle’s (2 Cottage Street, Unit 1)
b. Bento Nouveau, inc. (109 Portland Road)
c. Maine Lobster Express (7 Main Street)
d. Lakeside Nutrition {148 Main Street)
e. Mainly Melts (64 Portland Road)/Food Truck
f. Elevation Sushi and Tacos, LLC (103 Main Street)

Some discussion ensued over a clerical error on the back up material. Motion was made by Selectman McHatton
to approve Victualer's Licenses to Nora Belle’s, Bento Nouveau, Inc., Maine Lobster Express, Lakeside Nutrition, Mainly
Melts, and Elevation Sushi and Tacos, LLC. Second from Vice-Chairman Zaidman. 5 approve / 1 oppose (Selectman Tworog
opposed)

2. Confirmation of Warden’s Appointment for June 14", 2022

Motion was made by Selectman McHatton to approve Town Clerks appointment of Marita Wiser as Warden for
the Town of Bridgton June 14™, 2022 State of Maine Primary Election. Second from Vice-Chairman Zaidman.
5 approve / 0 oppose

3, Certificate of Commitment of Sewer User Rates Commitment #263

Motion was made by Vice-Chairman Zaidman to approve the Commitment of Sewer User Rates Commitment

#263; secand from Selectman Packard. 5 approve / 0 oppose

c. Selectman’s Concerns

¢ Selectman Tworog complimented the fire department on their response to a structure fire on Elm Street.

s Selectman Tworog asked if there was a plan to fix damage to private property caused by the wastewater
project. Town Manager Peabody stated the workers are only supposed to work to the edge of the towns right of
way, otherwise there would need to be a construction ease.

e Chairman Lone brought up concerns about line painting. Town Manager Peabody stated he is hoping to have
lines and crosswalks painted before July 4.

¢ Chairman Lone gave kudos to all of those involved in the murat projects.

s Chalrman Lone noted two holes in the entrance to the depot street parking lot.

e Chairman Lone thanked the public works department for their work in the cemeteries, as well as the American
Legion for putting up flags, and noted a memorial observance at the Veterans Memorial at 11am Sunday, May
29" by the American Legion Post 67.

¢ Vice-Chairman Zaidman had no concerns.

» Selectman Packard had no concerns.

* Selectman McHatton had no concerns.

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page3 of 5 May 25, 2022



d. Town Manager's Report/ Deputy Town Manager's Report
TOWN OF BRIDGTON DEPUTY TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT May 24, 2022

General
take Region Television hosted a Candidates Night for thase running for positions on the Board of Selectmen and Planning Board
on Monday, May 23, 2022, They plan on running replays for those that missed this annual program. For information contact
Lake Region Television at 207-647-8044 or info@lakeregiontv.org  The Community Development Director, Deputy Community
Development Director and | will be attending the Greater Porttand Council of Governments 2022 Summit this coming Thursday,
May 26th to receive an award on behalf of Bridgton for the significant investment made in the streetscapes and wastewater
expansion projecks. A great deal of thanks goes to those who envisioned and brought forward these projects and 1o the voters
who approved, as Bridgton has become the talk of the region for how beautiful we look and for the expansion of essential
wastewater services that will be provided to our citizens and businesses.
Bridgton Recreation
We are ramping up for the summer with swim lessons beginning on June 27th and summer camp beginning on June 20th (sign
up now!) Two outdoor pickle ball courts are available for use behind the Town Hall, We are hosting the Cal Ripken 12U District
Tournament on June 20 - June 23 to be held at Junior Harmon Field. For more comprehensive information contact Recreation
Director, Gary Colello, at 647-1126 or refer to our website at www.bridgtonmaine.org

Town Clerk’s Department

NEW! QR codes have been created to scan for the warrant and secret ballot, They have been placed around the Town
Office...so give it a try and SCAN AWAY! The Annual Town Meeting (Election of Officers and Secret Baliot Questions only and
State Primary) will be held on Tuesday, June 14, 2022 at the Town Hall, 26 North High Street beginning at 8:00a.m. to 8:00p.m.
Unlike the past two years the Annual Town Meeting (business meeting) will be held on Wednesday, June 15, 2022 at 7:00p.m. at
Town Hall, 26 North High Street and will be in-person. There is a non-binding guestion on the referendum baliot to determine
preference of future Annual Town Meetings “Do you favor voting on all business to be transacted at future annual town
meetings by secret ballot election rather than traditional in-person meetings” Absentee Ballots are currently available, please
see the Town Clerks Office. 30 day Tax Lien notices will be mailed in June, for status of your taxes please contact the Town
Clerks Office. The MSAD 61 Election was held today at the Town Hall, 26 North High Street. | am pleased to say that | was
officially elected Moderator for this election, my first time to experience this very important role, thank you Laurie for giving me
the opportunity. t is not too fate to vote, they are open until 8:00p.m. Please contact Town Clerk, Laurie Chadbourne at 207-
647-8786 or Ichadhourne@bridgtonmaine.org with any questions.

Bridgton Fire Department

On Sunday night there was a fire at an Elm Street residence, the fire was initfally in the walls on the second floor and it was
tough to find as erews had to wait until the roof was vented to reduce the heat. It was a good save averalll We appreciate all
the members that arrived on scene from our department and from other departments for not only this incident but for all the
incidents throughout the year.

Bridgton Public Works Department
Repair work has begun on the Highland Lake Dam

Bridgton Police Department

Public Engagement included: Officer Chaine gave an informational tafk to a local business about active shooter safety. Chief
Jones presented to the Bridgton Lions Club topics of public safety and Police Department various efforts. PSAA Gendron is
actively planning this summer’s National Night Out event scheduled for August 2nd. We would like to thank all that came out
to join our officers for Law Enforcement Officers Appreciation Day this past Friday and a special thank you to Peter Dumont,
Head Custodian, for all the prep work and set-up. Training: Officer Johnson attended the NAMI Crisis Intervention Training.
PSAA Gendron received certification as a records management specialist. Chief Jones attended the annual Maine Chiefs
conference and training. Officer Wilson is nearing the end of field training and looking forward to summer police academy.

New Officer: We would iike to welcome Officer Lisa Mageira as she has recently started the field training program. Recognition:
The State of Maine American Legion has selected our very own Officer Brandan George to receive the 2022 Law Enforcement
Officer of the Year award. Their fetter to Officer George began with this quote: “Dear Officer George, Congratulations on your
selection to receive the 2022 Law Enforcement Officer of the Year. All Legionnaires in Maine congratulate you on your steadfast
dedication to the safety and security of the people in your community and this state.” The award will be presented to him at the
Legion's Annual Convention in June. Congratulations Brandan!

Until next time....be safe and be well.
Respectfully submitted,

Georgiann M. Fleck

Deputy Town Manager

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5 May 25, 2022



11. Old Business {Board of Selectmen Discussion Only)
a. Wastewater Status Update
Town Manager Peabody stated he has nothing new to report.

12. Treasurer's Warrants
There were no Treasurer's Warrants provided to the Board for approval.

13. Public Comments on Non-Agenda ltems
There were no public comments on non-agenda items.

14, Dates for the Next Board of Selectmen’s Meetings

June 14, 2022

June 28, 2022
15. Adjourn

Motion was made by Chairman Lone to adjourn the meeting at 7:05 P.M; second from Selectman Packard.
5 approve / 0 oppose

Respectfully submitted,

Jamie L. Ferguson
Deputy Town Clerk

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page5 of 5 May 25, 2022



Laurie Chadbourne

From: Robert "Bob" Peabody, Jr.

Sent: Monday, May 23, 2022 11:26 AM
To: Laurie Chadbourne

Cc: Georgiann M Fleck; Nikki Hodgkins
Subject: FW: June 14th meeting

Robert A. Peabody, Jr.
Bridgton Town Manager

3 Chase Street, Suite |
Bridgton, Maine 04009
rpeabody@bridgtonmaine.org
207.647.8786 Office
207.256.7211 Cell

From: Mike O'Donnell <MikeO@jeodonnell.com>

Sent: Monday, May 23, 2022 11:20 AM

To: Robert "Bob" Peabody, Jr. <rpeabody@bridgtonmaine.org>; Georgiann M Fleck <gmfleck@bridgtonmaine.org>
Cc: John O'Donnell <john@jeodonnell.com>; Denis Berube <denis@jeodonnell.com>

Subject: June 14th meeting

' Some people who received this message don't often get email from mikeo@jeodonnell.com. Learn why this is important
Bob,
Please add discussion of the 4H request for exemption to the Bridgton Selectman’s June 14™ meeting.

| believe that you already have Denis scheduled to process a supplemental assessment and a few other assessing loose
ends on that agenda.

Michael O’Donnell
207 926 4044
mikeo@jeodonnell.com




SUPPLEMENTAL TAX CERTIFICATE
Title 36 M.R.S.A, Section 713

We, the undersigned, Assessors of the Municipality of Bridgton, hereby cettify that the
foregoing list of estates and assessments thereon, recorded in page 1 through 1 of this
book, were either invalid, void or omitted by mistake from our original invoice and
valuation and list of assessments dated the 13th day of July, 2021, that these lists are
supplemental to the aforesaid original invoice, valuation and list of assessments dated

the 13th day of July, 2021, and are made by virtue of Title 36, Section 713, as
amended.

Given under our hands this 14" day of June 2022,

MUNICIPAL ASSESSOR(S)

Carmen E. Lone, Chairman

Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice Chairman

Paul A. Tworog

G. Fraderick Packard

Robert J. McHattan Sr.

*Attach this form to the inside of the valuation book with a list of persons and their
estates.



SUPPLEMENTAL TAX WARRANT
Title 36 M.R.S.A,, Section 713

County of Cumberiand

To Robert A. Peabody, Jr., Tax Collector of the Municipality of Bridgton, within said
County of Cumberiand

GREETINGS:

Hereby are committed to you a true list of the assessments of the estates of the persons
hereinafter named. You are hereby directed to levy and collect each of the persons
named in said list his respective portion, therein set down, of the sum of: Thirty four
thousand, six hundred sixty nine dollars and twelve cents ($34,669.12), it being the
amount of said list; and all powers of the previous warrant for the collection of taxes
issued by us to you and dated 13th day of July, 2021 are extended thereto; and we do
hereby certify that the list of assessments of the estates of the persons named in said
list is a supplemental assessment laid by virfue of Title 36, Section 713, as amended
and the assessments and estates thereon as set forth in sald list were either invalid,

void or omitted by mistake from the original list committed unto you under our warrant
dated 13th day of July, 2021.

Given under our hands this 14th day of June 14, 2022,
MUNICIPAL ASSESSOR(S)

Carmen E. Lone, Chairman

Glenn R. Zaidman, Vice Chairman

Paul A, Tworog

G. Frederick Packard

Robett .J. McHattan Sr.

*Submit this form to the Tax Collector with a list of persons and thelr estates.



Bridgton

Real Estate Tax Commitment Book ~ 14,800 06/01/2022
3:48 PH 2021 Supplemental bills 2022-06-14 Page 1
Aacount Nama & Addrass Land Building Exemption Agsasamant Tax
445 KINGSWOOD CAMP 1,355,450 1,002,518 1 3,342,508 34,560.12
PROPERTIES LIC
104 WILDWOOD RD Acras | 93.82
BRIDGTON ME 04009
1064 WILDWOOD RD.
005-014
B37600P295 12/21/2020 B37600P292 12/21/2020
B1526P279
Tand Building Exempt Total Tax ~
Paga Totals! 1,339,990 1,002,518 Y 2,342,508 34,66_9.12
Final Totals: 1,339,990 1,002,518 G 2,342,508 34,669,112



Assessing Office

Town of Bridgton
3 Chase Street, Suite 1
Bridgton, ME 04009

June 14, 2022

re: 2021-2022 taxes

Kingswood Camp Propeties LLC

104 Wildwood Road

Bridgton, Maine 04009 Bridgton, Maine
005-014

Dear Kingswood Camp Propeties LLC,

We enclose a supplemental tax bill for your 2021-2022 Bridgton, Maine
taxes. The supplemental tax bill is necessary because your property was either
omitted or incorrectly assessed in the regular 2021-2022 tax commitment, All
terms for payment are the same as the terms for regular tax bills, except for the
due dates. Payments should be made to the Town of Bridgton, Maine, Three
Chase St., Ste. 1, Bridgton, Maine 04009.

If you have any questions concerning the enclosed tax bill you may us at
the Town Office on Tuesday at the above phone number.
Sincerely,

Denis NJ Berube, C.M.A.
Assessor's Agent
Bridgton, Maine

Phone: (207) 647-8786 ¢+ Fax: (207) 647-8789 + email: assessing@bridgtonmaine.org



Town of Bridgton

2021 Real Estate Tax Bill

Qurrent Billing Information

3 Chase Bt., Suite 1 Land 1,339,990
Bridgton, ME 04009 Bullding 1,002,518
Assessment 2,342,508
R445 Exemption 0
KINGSWOOD CAMP PROPERTIES LLIC Taxable 2,342,508
104 WILDWOCD RD

BRIDGTON ME 04009 Rate Per $1000 14.800
Total bue - . 34,669,112

Agres: 93.82 . :
Map/Lot 005-014 Book/Page B37600P295 Payment Dua 8/13/2022 34,669.12

Loocation 104 WILDWOOD RD.

Information

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT YQUR COUNTY, SCHOOL AND MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX s DUE (THE s
TAX AMOUNT IS DUE ON 8/13/2022, INTEREST WILL BE CHARGED ON UNPAID TAXES AT

AN ANNUAL RATE OF 6% BEGINNING 8/14/2022,

Per state law the ownership and valuation of all real estate and property subject to
taxation shall be £ixed as of April 1, 2021,

IF YOU NEED A RECEIPT PLEASE ENCLOSE A SELF ADDRESSED STAMPED ENVELOPE,

Without State ald to educatilon, State revenue sharing and State relmbursement for the

Maine resident homestead property tax exemption, your tax bill would have been 10,8%
higher.

“Current ‘Billing Distribution i 7

S Remittance Instructions |

County 4.11% l 424.90 Please make checks or money orders payable to
Town 44,89% 15,562.97| |Town of Brldgton and mall to:
MSAD 61 51.00% 17,681.25

Tovm of Bridgton
3 Chase St., Ste. 1
Bridgton, ME 04009

2021 Real Estate Tax Bill

N / n ‘Dhe Data’ § Ameipt Dhe | amount Paid

Pleasa remit this portion with your firast payment
2021 Real Estate Tax Bill

Account: R443 8/13/2022 34,669‘.12
B i ¥ OPERTIES : B i S S W -
:::T}m- pnp T ORERES 1 “:Ppe;Date | imount Dua | Amount Paid

Leontion: 1M WILDWOOD RD.

First Payment




Article 25. Holidays

Section 1. Policy

All full-time employees, including those in the probationary period, who have been employed by
the Town for at least thirty (30) days, shall be entitled to paid holidays as follows:

A. New Year’s Day

B. Martin Luther King Jr. Day

C. Presidents’ Day

D. Patriot’s Day

E. Memorial Day

F. Junteenth Day

G. Independence Day

H. Labor Day

l. Indigenous Peoples Day

. Veterans Day

K. Thanksgiving Day

L. *The Day After Thanksgiving

M. Christmas Day

N. One-half (1/2) day before Christmas Day (except if Christmas Day falls on a Saturday

or Sunday- see Article 25, Section 2)

*The day after Thanksgiving is a paid holiday for non-union/non-contractual employees only.

Juneteenth is on June 19", It is an approved Holiday in both Union contracts. It is both a Federal and
State recognized holiday.



Municipality: Response: Notes: Contact Person: |
Alfred Adopled
Aroostook County Government will be observing Juneteenth as
Aroostook County Adopted an official Holiday. ryan@aroostook.me.us
Auburn has not taken a position but this will be considered in
Auburn Considering the near future perowell@aubummaine.gov.
Augusta Adopted Augusta adopted Juneteenth as a City holiday last month. Susan robertson@augqustamaine.gov
Bangor Adopted couriney.odonnell@bangormaine.gov
Bath will be considering it in the near future. We have to bring it
back before City Council before it can be added to the City's list
Bath Considering of holidays mmeyers@CityofBath.com
Biddeford Council will be considering whether to add
Biddeford Considering Juneteenth as an official Cily holiday later this month James Bennett@biddefordmaine. or:
Blue Hill Adopted Adopted townadmin@townofbluehillmaine.org
Bridgton Considering Considering
Brunswick Adopted Adopted. jeldridae@brunswickme. org
Cape Elizabeth adopted the holiday and added it to our two
Cape Elizabeth Adopted Colleclive Bargaining Agreements matthew sturgis@capeelizabeth.org
Casco Adopted
Caribou Adopted
Chelsea does not have any plans to add Juneteenth to the list
Chelsea Not Considering of it's holidays. chelseamanager@chelseamaine.org
Town of Corinna does not have any known plans to add it to the
Corinna Not Considering holiday list corinnamar(@roadrunner.com
Town of Corinth Board opted to adopt the holiday after
discussion. Allowed based on the decision of State agency
. closure (BMV and IFW) which are two key sup, functions for s
Codnth Adopled clerks. The Board in‘me past has followed sui:D?:rl the State Wanager@losnofecrinih con
government holiday closure list published by BHR.
Cumberland Adopted Adopted
Cumberland County Adopted Adopted gailey@cumberlandcounty.org
Damariscolta Not Considering We have no plans to make this a Town holiday mlutkus@damariscottame.com
Deer Isle Not Considering We haven't discussed it in Deer Isle. deerislemanager@amail.com
Dexter Adopted Adopted it our last council meeling manager@dextermaine.orq
Eastport Adopted
Since this became a federal and state holiday too close to the
actual day, we did not do anything this past year. However,
Fairfield adopted it last fall. We did MOUs with the Unions and
Fairfield Adopted changed the personnel policy. mflewelling@fairfieldme.com
Fort Kent Adopted Adopted sparadis@fortkent.org
Gray Town Council unanimously adopted Juneteenth as a
Gray Adopted holiday nrudy@graymaine.org
Hallowell adopts all state and federal holidays per charter
stating same...so we don't need city council action to add a new
Hallowell Adopted one. citymanager@hallowellmaine.org
Hampden Adopted
Harpswell Adopted
Houlton Considering Houlton will be considering at first January meeting town manager@houlton-maine.com
Kennebunkport Not Considering Currently no plans to add it to the list Ismith@kennebunkporime.gov
Kittery has adopted as a holiday and incorporated into the
collective bargaining agreements. | have one final step to do to
update the ordinance, but we will be officially done with the
Kittery Adopted adoption process by the end of this month. KAmaral@kitteryme.org
Knox County has adopted in our personnel policy handbook
Knox County Adopted and all union contracts. ahart@knoxcountymaine . gov
Lewiston Adopted
Limestone Adpoted
Livermore Adpoted
Long Island Not Considering Not Considering
Madison Not Considering Madison currently has no known plans to add it to the list. edd@madisonmaine.com
Mapleton, Castle Hill, and Chapman | Adopted Adopted townmanager@mapleton me

Milo has not discussed it. Our Seleciboard's stance is that we
already have enough holidays and if we were to request adding

Milo Not Censidering one we would have to give up a current one townmanager@townofmilo.or
Minot has already added it considering that both State and
Minot Adopled Federal offices will be closed. admin@minotme.org
|Naples Adopted Adopted www townofnaples.org
New Gloucester Adopted Adopted
Northport Not Considering Northport has no known plans to add it. administrator@northportmaine.org
Norridgewock Non-Union Observing Likely to come up in future union negotiations for that group of employees
Nonway Observing Norway is following the State schedule for Holidays. dlajoie@norwaymaine.com
Ogunguit Adopted Adopted mbuttrick@ogunquitpd.org
Qrono Tabled Tabled with no timeframe
Here in Pownal we observe all state holidays and since
Juneteenth is a state holiday we will be observing it. The Select
Board has not officially changed the personnel policy yet administrator@pownalmaine.org
{mostly because | have not brought it before them) but we will
Pownal Observing be this month.
Raymond Censidering Considering
Readfield Considering It will certainly come up in negoliations manager@readfieldmaine.org
The City of Rockland adopted the day as a municipal holiday
Rockland Adopted after the Slate declared il as a State Holiday. tluttrell@rocklandmaine gov
Sabatlus Adopted
Scarborough Adopted Adopled
Sebago Considering Considering
South Portland Adopted Adopted it as an official holiday smorelli@southportland.org
Standish Adopted Adopled wdairoux@yahoo.com




Tremont Adopted

Union Adopted Officially adepted the day as a municipal holiday townmanager@union.maine.qov
Vassalboro added this Federal and State holiday to our list of

Vassalboro Adopted observed holidays in eur Personnel Handbook msabins@vassalboro.net
The Town of West Paris has adopted Juneteenth as a

West Paris Adopted municipal holiday. wptwnmar@medgalink net
Winslow has adopted based on the terms of our Personnel

Winslow Adopled Policy and union agreements elacroix@winslow-me.gov

Wiscassalt Adopted

Yarmouth Considering Plan on it soon. Intugger@\‘armcuth,me us

Originally done by Jim Bennett. Updated by Mark Green on 5/23/22




Article 27. Personal Days Section 1: Eligibility Employees beginning their ffth5) third (3) year
of continuous service shall receive three (3) personal days per year. Personal days must be used
in the year received and shall not be carried forward into the next year. The use of Personal Days
requires 24-hours’ notice on a form prescribed by the Finance Office to and approval by the
Department Head or, for Department Heads, the Town Manager.

Vacation time was a High Improvement Priority in a recent employee satisfaction survey. 19
respondents rated it High, 8 Neutral and 3 Low.



TOWN OF BRIDGTON

PERSONNEL RULES AND
REGULATIONS

Enacted October 1985
Revised July 1, 2019
Revised June 23, 2020
Revised January 26, 2021
Revised July 27, 2021
Revised December 14, 2021
Revised June 14, 2022




TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

...........................................................................................................................

Article 1. General Provisions

..........................................................................................................

Section 1. Preamble

......................................................................................................................

Section 2. Purpose

........................................................................................................................

Section 3. Scope

...........................................................................................................................

Section 4. Administration

.............................................................................................................

Section 5. Departmental Rules

Article 2. Attendance And Workplace Rules

Section 1. Attendance

Section 2. Appearance

Section 3. Visiting/Use of Workplace Telephones/Personal Cell Phones ...

Section 4. Solicitation/Distribution

Section 5. (ifis

..............................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................

Article 3. Equal Opportunity Employment

......................................................................................

Section 1. Policy

Article 4. Sexual Harassment

SECHON 1. POLICY c.tieieeiiiirt ettt e e s e s s re s et s sa bt sanesmrae s 4

Article 5. Possession and Use of Alcohol, Marijuana, lllegal Drugs or Misuse of Prescribed

Section 1. Policy

...........................................................................................................................

Section 2. Performance Affected by Alcohol or Drug ADUSE ....occiieeiiieiiiiccreece e
SECHON 3. DISCIPIIIE ©1evvrivreereiericrtrrer et rree e st s e sttt s e g as st 0 bse s ae s rae st aesaneenannenan 7
Article 6. Smoke-Free Workplace Policy for the Town of Bridgton
Section 1. Background and PUIPOSE.......coiiiiiiiiicicceeiriiccie e reesre s e ne e s
Section 2. Procedure
Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 1. Appointments
SeCtion 2. EHgIDIILY .coveei et se s e st e s s e e nes
Section 3. Employee Selection
Section 4. Blood and Legal Relationships
Section 5. Application for EMployment........coociviiiiiicescseeses e 9
Section 6. Application and TESHIE ......evcvieiiire e e e 9

Section 7. Probationary Period. ...t s e e e s e 9




SECHION 8. SEIIOTILY tevcvivetiririeiet ittt ae s se e e st e e e e ss b aeesbenasseansbaeassaanserasrenanseranes 9

Section 9. Standard 0f CONAUECE........ooiiiti et re et sar e rse s beeerseenran 9
Article 8. Types of EMPLOYMENT......ccoiiiiiiiieiiei ettt s ses s beeaeeaean 9
Section 1. Exempt/NOn-EXSmpPt......ccooviiviiiiiiiiince e 9
Section 2. Full-time EmMployment ... 10
Section 3. Part-time EmploymeEnt ........ocoiiiiiiiice et 10
Section 4. Seasonal EMPIOYIMEIT .....cccvoririoiiiciieie st e e es 10
Section 5. Student APPOINIMENLS ....ccoiiiiiiiiii et et a e 10
Section 6. On-Call EMPlOyMEnt ........oooiiiiiiiiiiieniese it 10
Section 7. Temporary EMpPIOYMENT ....oooviiiiiiiiier ettt 10
Section 8. Contractiual APPOIMIINEILS......coieierrieeet et esie s r ettt a s st s e esbeenerasssssanssnenanas 11
Article 9. Lay-off Recal l/ReSIZNALION .......ooviiiviiie ittt et s e beanssese e 11
SECHON 1. LLaY-08T .. ettt ettt ettt e et ant e res e ear e e esreeraasesseseraasesaesereasessetssnnees 11
Section 2. Lay-0ff PrOCEAUIE ......ovviirieric i sis e st sb e san s e seaesaessnesons 11
Section 3. Lay-0fT NNOTICE ..o e e e e re et s s easesateenareen 11
Section 4. Lay-off Benefits EUgIDIHLY ooovvveiriieent e 11
Section 5. Re-EMPIOYNIEHL ....oiviiiiiiciii ettt et sae s ere e st 11
SECtion 6. RESIZNATION . ...iiiiiiiiieeitieciesttete e eie sttt ettt te st e te s e s s b e e e e s beebeesaeesreensearensnnens 11
Article 10. Position Description and Compensation........c.coovevirivicieninieeiiiseeeeres e enas 12
SECHON 1. POLICY ..ttt et e re e r e e et e s e b 12
SeCtion 2. COMPENSALION ....viiierrieir it itert et e sree et ettt e et as e b e e st s e besebeesbenbeeaaesabasseraes i2
SECHON 3. LONGBEVILY 1vveiiiiiiiiiteiieet ettt b e aste bbb e b s eaaestbass b e sabeabeesbaeabseseansassseeans 13
Section 4. Long-standing Part-time EMployees ... sns e 13
Section 5. New EmPlOYEES....cccivviiiiiriiiiesees sttt e st st e s s en e s s ras 13
Section 6. Promotions/TIANSIEIS .o.ovvvivieiieceei e na s re s 13
Article 11. Hours of Work and Standard Work Week. ... 13
SECHON 1. POlICY ittt et e et e st s b e e st e nae e b e n b nne s nes 13
SeCtioN 2. SCREAUINTIZ ....ocvieiiiieiiient et seae et e s e et b e e bt ses e s s aesneesteressaerabessnssenas 14
SECHION 3. POSUITIZ 1vtivieeteeeiireeriesreessrerrassteresiaesererrssseesarssestsreesnssbbentbesntirbesnsnsbessnssrnesneenssersens 14
ATHCIE 12, OVETHINE «oovviviiiiiiiriceece ettt es et st ae e s et srnestenaresnnessaansvenees 14
SECHON 1. POLIICY 1ivutiirieritreriscries ettt e st et e et e e e re e s ee e srrs s e e treesbaesataesaasansnsenannas 14
Article 13, Compensatory TiME......coovvieiviiiieciresrr e e s s e s s e saesesaeesnseasen 14
SECHOMN 1. POLICY 1eicviiriierie ittt re e e e e e st e saee s bt s rbeesraeesrbeesae e tneenseon 14
Article 14. Emergency Call Back ..c.oooioiiii ettt 15

SECHON . POTICY ..ottt et e bt s b et a et e ba s beeas e 15




ATTICLE 15, ATLEIIAATICE nneiveerreeseseesseeeettesisssreesseassasssrasassseesstssssnsssnssnsnsetbaasssseeetasinistestennntnrainenissarns 15

SECHOM 1. POLICY . outrvererirt ettt e et b a s b s bbb 15
SECHON 2. RECOTUS ... eeiieeirtieeitieee et rte s ie st r e e b i b aes b e e e b e e bbb e sba e s s e e s e b e e e b e e e st snr s rnn e 15
Section 3. Payroll Reporting SHEel ..o et 15
Article 16. Promotions and Transfers ..ot 16
Section 1. Present EMPIOYEES ..ocviiviiriiiiii e e 16
Article 17. Employee Performance Evaluation ..., 16
SECHOMN 1. POLICY 1vvivitiireriete ittt s s bbb a e bbb ea bbb bbb 16
Section 2. Frequency of Evaluation ...t 16
Article 18, Grievance PrOCEUUIE ....cocviiiiiceeiieneie et ebt s s te s s a e e s n ettt 16
SECtION 1. DIETINILION ©vevvivievrererieeerierie st restsee s ere e s seserraerssesbsasssesa b s eae s st e nnseanessbae b e senn s nnrns 16
SECHON 2. PLOCEAULE ... cvvieirieirriereerier et eree e sr et s bt srt s e s s be s n b s e san e s be e s ae e s r e e s SRt b s bn e ban s 16
Article 19. Employee TIAININE ..ottt s 17
SECHON 1. POLICY ...vveteieirie et 17
Article 20, Outside/Non-Town Employment......c.ccviiomiii i 17
SECHOM 1. POIICY .oviretieeet ettt e bbb e re e e bbbt 17
Article 21. Reimbursement of EXPenses. ..o 17
SECHOM 1. POLICY 1vevtitereeiireriie ettt r e b e e sa e e s bbb 17
SECHON 2. REPOITIIE ... vevvivrieeiaseisicieieiie ettt st st 18
Article 22, POIHICA]L ACHIVILIES....vivvricrreirererressiseeerareesireesssia st ssne s ea b b s asberan s engsbe s e sresnresatons 18
SECHON 1. POLCY c.vvvrieet ettt ittt bbbt s 18
Article 23, DISCIPHNAIY ACHOMN . c..c.cveiriiiiiiiiiiires et s 18
SECHON 1. POIIOY titittereiite ettt e b e s 18
SECtion 2. CONSULTATION 1ovuviiviieevivesteeeeeirsr e rrces e ses s aass s s aatsera s e e bana s s iesa s s e e b eni e s b nean s bestas 18
Section 3. Just Cause and NOtTICATION .....c.irive i s e 18
Article 24. Leaves Of ADSEIICE .....iiuiiiiiicieieen ettt e 19
Section 1. Leave Without PAY ....cccvivreiiiiiiiiiiiste it 19
Section 2. Reserve SErvice LEAVE ...t 19
Section 3. Bereavement LLEAVE .......cicviviieririeoiiiiieiicies sttt 19
Section 4. UnauthoriZed ADSEINCE ...oveiiieiiieeiriirireerieee i e s s 19
ATHCLE 25, HOLAAYS .. evvvieeereeesiiet et eb s bbb 20
SECHON 1. POLLCY .ovevitiiirineeeeeitete ittt et bbb bbb b s bbb r s s 20
Section 2. SPecial CaSES ... ..ii it e s 20
Section 3. FHGIBIILY c.ovit it st 20

ATHICLE 26, VACAIIONS trrviirerererissesressssnreeseesssrsisssessssssasasesssriasirssssesaeeessnsesemmsmsanebtensstsrsssimmmnstsaeesssens 21



SECHOM 1, POICY . eeitiiiiiiieiirie ittt et s b e s st aee sreenes srsene s s raas e srnsen 21

Article 27, Personal DAy ..o e ssss s et st s e 21
Section 1 BIHZIDIIEY ..cvvrveriiiiireiiiinii e st as e sbe e 21
ATICle 28, SICK LEAVE...c.eiriiiiie ittt s bbb e s 21
Section 1. Eligibility and Accrual .........oovviiiiiieceeeceieeer e i 21
Section 2. Sick Leave USAZE .. 22
Section 3. Transtional IDUHES «..cc.vovervirieeicercie et s s e 22
Section 4. Sick Leave ACCOUNLIINE .ovvviveeiieiieiiresiei oo ener s ebe e sbn et 22
Section 5. Sick Leave Conversion Benefifs ....coeeiieninconiiiiiniine i 22
Section 6. Abuse of Sick Leave ..o 23
Section 7. Sick Leave and Worker's Compensation.......co.eoeevreiricrmincinninensme s, 23
Section 8. Physical EXamiNations .......cucceoviiriiiiieiniieisis e esessesesesses e oo ssesesnesnon 23
Section 9. Family Medical Leave ...t 23
ATHICIE 29, JULY DL oottt et s e ra e 23
PoTTo1 1 o) 1 B B ad e (v PP 23
Article 30. Employee Benefit Programs i i 24
Section 1. Retirement PIan ...t s 24
Section 2. SOCIal SECULTLY ....c.vviiiiriiiii e e s 24
Section 3. Health INSUTAINCE ....c.ociriiiiceiie e bbb s 24
Section 4, Health Reimbursement ATTANZEMENE......c.ccvirvierereivreiereeesrnerersreresrressmnsessesvesssssansees 25
Section 5. Dental INSUIANCE .....viiiiirreie e er e e e e e sas s s st bseats 25
Section 6. WOTKer's COMPENSALION «..c.vivirirrirreeriiieiet e eresies e sies e sies e see e e essensesseresneasinn 25
ATEICIE 31, Cell PRODE...c.oiiiiie ettt et a s be e rn et e 25
SECHION 1. PUIPOSE oottt bbb s bas s e b sa s 25
Section 2, Issuance and Responsibility ......cocviciviiecrieiiiieiirce e e csneanes 25
SeCON 3. Personal USE ...ivvuiiieieeieieeei ettt e e ra e bbb bn e e e b s n s 26
Article 32. Electronic Equipment, Communication and Use......c..occceviviiniiiiiinncninnn, 26
SECHION L. PUIPOSE ettt et eae s e re e nbee b eas e ae s saesas s et n e b sbeere s 26
Section 2. Obligations, Responsibilities and USe.........ccoceiiciniinicviiniciens 26
Article 33, SOCIAL MEAIA ..oioiiiioeiiieeic ettt sr st e e sk ee e n et n e e e e n e n e 27
SECioN 1. PUIPOSE ...eiiiiiiireiir sttt bbb as s st 27
SECtion 2. PerSOnAl UISE .....ciiieiiiiiiireireere et erie e b et sbeesireeerereste s s ebe e seneabaesaeesens e beesaeesbeanrn et 27
Section 3. Prohibited AcCtions/USeS ..ot 28
ATHCIE 34, SATEEY 1.vivveriiceieieeri ettt et sab et e st b et e et e b s b e R ba et b e 29
SECHION 1. POLCY ettt ettt s e bbbt re e e e st a e b sa s e 29



Article 35. Employee Organizations........cccvveiriiiiiiiiiiin s s 29

Section 1. Employee OrganizZations ... 29
Article 36. Personnel Records. ..o 29
SECHION 1, POLICY evvivie ittt et b b 29
ATHCLE 37, SUEEESLIONS ot iteeriieres ettt te st e s b se st e a st e b e e sa e e s s a e s b s sras s s e nentba s e beans 29
SECHON B, POLICY iiteitee et st et 29
Article 38, DefINItIONS «.vviieeieiiiei s e 29
N TToT o) 1R R I 4 11 PO P OO TSP OROTPO 29
Article 39. Severability/Conﬂicting ACHONS vt et et et e 31
SECHON 1, PrOVISIONS .ivuiitiitiresitecieiicer sttt e et bse b bae e ess s e bt aebs b s s ea et et 31
Article 40, BEfeCtive DAt ...ocoiiiviiirecen et 32

Exhibit 1. Earned Paid Leave Addendum



INTRODUCTION

These Personnel Rules and Regulations apply to the employees of the Town of Bridgton and do
not apply to volunteers such as committee members, youth volunteers, volunteer firefighters, etc.

These Rules and Regulations provide basic information about the Town of Bridgton and ifs
policies, programs and benefits. Read the Rules and Regulations to learn about your responsibilities
as an employee and the programs developed by the Bridgton Board of Selectmen for your benefit.

These Rules and Regulations replace and supersede all previous versions of the Rules and
Regulations and is designed to acquaint you with the Town of Bridgton by covering the questions
most frequently asked by employees. Please do not hesitate to ask your supervisor for more details.
Our hope is that your employment with the Town of Bridgton will be a rewarding and satisfactory
experience.

Article 1. General Provisions
Section 1. Preamble

The Board of Selectmen of the Town of Bridgton hereby adopt the following Personnel Rules and
Regulations for utilization by the Chief Administrative Officer and the Board of Selectmen in the
administration of the personnel function of the Town of Bridgton.

Avrticle 1. General Provisions
Section 2. Parpose

The purpose of the Board of Selectmen in prescribing these Rules and Regulations is to set forth a
uniform and equitable system of personnel administration for the Town of Bridgton to promote more
effective and efficient municipal operations on behalf of the citizenry, and to pursue positive
employee morale and loyalty. It is the hope of the Board of Selectmen that these Rules and
Regulations will provide each employee with a written summary of work benefits, privileges and
responsibilities in order to better ensure that all employees are treated the same and to provide a
clearly defined procedure for employees to resolve any problems which may arise during the course
of their employment with the Town. These Rules and Regulations do not and are not intended to
constitute an employment contract between the Town of Bridgton and its employees. The Board of
Selectmen reserves the right to make revisions to them when necessary.

Article 1. General Provisions
Section 3. Scope

Except as otherwise provided, these Rules and Regulations shall apply to all Bridgton employees.
They shall not apply to any employee or matter covered by a collective bargaining agreement
between the Town and its organized employees, except in areas that are not working conditions or
working conditions where the collective bargaining agreement is silent or there is no established
past practice. The fringe benefits provided by the Town to employees shail apply to full-time
employees only as defined in Article 8.2 except as may be otherwise provided herein.




Article 1. General Provisions
Section 4. Administration

A. Ensuring the day-to-day administration of these Rules and Regulations shall be the function
of the Town Manager, working through each Department Head. It shall be the responsibility
of each Department Head to insure his/her own familiarity with these Rules and Regulations
as well as that of his/her department staff.

B. It shall be the duty of the Town Manager to:

L.

Encourage and exercise leadership in the development of sound personnel practices
between the departments of the Town of Bridgton.

Advise the Board of Selectmen on manpower utilization.

. Foster and develop programs for improvement of employee effectiveness, including

training, safety, health, counseling, proper courtesy when dealing with public and
respect for municipal property.

Ensure the establishment and maintenance of appropriate records for all employees in
the public service, in which there is set forth the employee's: job description, pay or
status, sick leave, vacation time and other relevant data.

. Ensure that in each department these Rules and Regulations are administered fairly and

in conformity with the provisions of state and federal laws.

. Issue various administrative procedures and take other appropriate action to carry into

effect specific provisions of these Rules and Regulations when necessary.

. Perform the duties of the Affirmative Action Officer or delegate those duties to an

employee who shall be designated as the Town's Affirmative Action Officer.

Article 1. General Provisions
Section 5. Departmental Rules

It is recognized that there may be a need to establish and maintain departmental rules of conduct
and procedures, especially in the emergency services area. In the case of conflict between these
Rules and Regulations and those of a specific department, these Rules and Regulations shall be
controlling unless the department rules and any revisions have received the approval of the Board
of Selectmen.

However, every reasonable effort shall be made to insure maximum compatibility between these
and departmental rules.

Article 2. Attendance And Workplace Rules
Section 1. Attendance

Employees shall be at their respective places of work at the appointed departmental starting time.
For additional requirements refer to Article 15.




Article 2. Attendance and Workplace Rules
Section 2. Appearance

All persons employed by the Town of Bridglon shall maintain an acceptable level of personal
appearance, according to the departmental standards set forth by each Department Head. The Town
Manager shall set the standards for each Department Head based on the function of their respective
department. As each employee of the Town is acting on behalf of and representing the Town, it is
important that all personnel respond accordingly to the various departmental standards.

Article 2. Attendance and Workplace Rules
Section 3, Visiting/Use of Workplace Telephones/Personal Cell Phones

It shall be the policy of the Town of Bridgton to curtail excessive visiting of Town employees by
family or friends. Excessive use of workplace or personal cell phones for non-business-related
conversations is discouraged. Employees who bring personal cell phones to work shall use their
phones in a considerate manner that does not negatively affect the work environment. It shall be
the responsibility of the Department Head and/or the Town Manager to monitor said activities.

Arxticle 2. Attendance and Workplace Rules
Section 4. Solicitation/Distribution

Employees may not engage in solicitation of other employees for any purpose during work time or
in any work area including any Town parking lot used by employees in connection with their work.
The only exception to this rule is in accordance with the provisions below:

A. Employees may make available to other employees in a location approved by the Town
Manager (Town Office) or Department Head (other places of work) information such as
catalogs, flyers, or fundraising efforts that an employee may browse during their lunchtime
or approved break and possibly participate at their own discretion.

B. In no case shall there be an expectation that an employee be required to participate,
purchase, or donate.

Instances contrary to the aforementioned rule shall be reported to the Town Manager or Department
Head in a timely manner.

Employees found to be violating this policy may be subject to disciplinary action.

Article 2. Attendance and Workplace Rules
Section 5. Gifts

A Town employee is prohibited from soliciting or accepting any gift, gratuity, favor, entertainment,
loans, or any other item of monetary value from any person outside or within Town employment
whose interests may be affected by the employee’s performance or nonperformance of the
employee’s official duties.

Acceptance of nominal gifts, such as food and refreshments in the ordinary course of business
meetings, or unsolicited advertising or promotional materials such as hats, pens, note pads,
calendars, etc., is permitted. Gifts of food, particularly during the holidays, benefitting either an
entire department or building, are acceptable in accordance with the first paragraph.



If an employee has any questions about whether accepting a particular gift is appropriate, the
employee should discuss the issue with his/her supervisor.

Article 3. Equal Opportunity Employment
Section 1. Policy

The Town of Bridgton is committed to a policy of equal employment opportunity. The Town will
not discriminate against employees or applicants for employment based on any legally protected
status, including, but not limited to veteran or military status, marital status, physical or mental
disability, age, race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy, national
origin, genetic information or ancestry, This policy applies to all terms and conditions of
employment including, but not limited to hiring, placement, promotion, termination, layoff, recall,
transfer, leaves of absence, compensation, benefits and training.

Article 4. Sexual Harassment
Section 1. Policy

In support of our commitment to equal employment opportunities, the Town prohibits any and all
discrimination or harassment on the basis of any legally protected status, including, but not limited
fo veteran or military status, marital status, physical or mental disability, age, race, color, religion,
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy, national origin, genetic information or ancestry.
Such conduct is unlawful and will not be tolerated.

Examples of prohibited conduct includes:
A. Epithets, slurs, negative stereotyping, or threatening, intimidating or hostile acts that are

based on or that relate to an individual’s membership in a protected class.

B. Written or graphic material that denigrates or shows hostility toward an individual or group
because of legally protected status, including, but not limited to any of the legally protected
categories listed above; and

C. Offensive comments, jokes, innuendos and other statements or conduct based on an
individual’s membership in any of the legally protected categories listed above.

Sexual Harassment is a form of harassment based on sex, is a violation of the law, and is against
Town policy and will not be tolerated.

Sexual Harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other
verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:
A. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an

individual's employment.

B. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for
employment decisions affecting such individual; or

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's work
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.

4



Examples of sexual harassment include:

A. Sexual touching, advances or propositions.

Verbal abuse of a sexual nature,

Graphic or suggestive comments about an individual’s dress or body.

Sexually degrading words to describe an individual; and

=T 0w

Display in the workplace of sexually suggestive objects or pictures, including nude
photographs.

The Town prohibits unlawful discrimination and harassment, whether engaged by a supervisor,
agent, employee, co-worker or non-employee (such as a vendor or member of the public) who is
on the Town’s premises or who come in contact with Town employees while the employee is on
the job.

If you believe that you have been subjected to sexual harassment by a supervisor, co-worker, agent
of the employer or anyone else in the workplace, immediately report that incident to the Town
Manager or Deputy Town Manager. If the Town Manager is the subject of the complaint, the
employee should report same to the Chairman of the Board of Selectmen.

All complaints will be investigated promptly. Confidentiality will be protected to the extent
reasonably possible. Any employee, supervisor or manager who is found to have engaged in
harassment will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination from
employment.

Retaliation against any employee for filing a complaint or participating in an investigation is
prohibited.

Article 5. Possession and Use of Alcohol, Marijuana, [llegal Drugs or Misuse of Preseribed
Drugs
Section 1. Policy

The Town believes that all employees should be able to work in an environment free from alcohol
and drug abuse. Accordingly, the Town expects all employees to report to work and fo perform
their duties in a manner which does not jeopardize the health, safety and well-being of co-workers
or the public.

A. No employee may drink alcoholic beverages or consume marijuana in any form during
working hours, including during meal periods, breaks or authorized interruptions of work.
This includes overtime periods. An employee who drinks alcohol or consumes marijuana in
any form during working hours is subject to immediate discipline, including dismissal.

B. No employee may illegally possess, use, sell, distribute narcotics, drugs, controiled
substances or unauthorized prescription drugs of any kind while on the job, on work
premises or during an employee’s working hours.



Employees may not report to work under the influence of alcohol, marijuana, or illegal
drugs.

Employees may possess and take prescription drugs prescribed for them by a medical
practitioner. Employees must inform their supervisor before reporting to work if they are
taking any substances, including prescription and non-prescription drugs, which may affect
their judgment or performance.

An employee whose off-the-job use of legal or illegal drugs impairs the employee’s job
performance is subject to immediate discipline, including dismissal.

Article 5. Possession and Use of Alcohol, Marijuana, Illegal Drugs or Misuse of Prescribed

Drugs

A.

Section 2. Performance Affected by Alcohol or Drug Abuse

Without waiving its right to discipline or dismissal depending on the nature of the offense
(including, but not limited to, any of the offenses in Section 1), the Town recognizes alcohol
and drug abuse including the misuse of prescribed drugs may be a disease. The Town will
maintain a continuing effort to encourage treatment of drug and alcohol problems of
employees. Department Heads will receive instructional material on the identification of
alcohol and drug abuse problems.

Any employee who suspects that they have an alcohol or drug dependency problem is
encouraged to seek the appropriate and necessary medical provider or to contact his/her
supervisor to seek voluntary diagnosis or treatment. If the employee obtains a diagnosis
indicating a drug or alcohol abuse problem, the Department Head can assist the employee in
obtaining a list of treatment resources available to deal with the problem and ensure that the
employee is informed of the benefits available through the Town’s health plan. If an
employee undertakes treatment or rehabilitation for drug or alcohol abuse problem, the
Department Head will work with the employee to modify the employee’s work schedule or
duties, if modification is consistent with the operational needs of the department and as
required by law, to allow the employee to receive treatment. All relevant personnel records
and discussion will be kept confidential in accordance with state and federal law.

In accordance with federal law, an employee is required to notify the Town Manager of a
criminal or civil conviction for a drug or alcohol violation occutring in the workplace no
later than five (5) calendar days after such conviction. In turn, the Town, within ten (10)
calendar days of learning of such conviction must give written notification to any federal
agency from which the Town receives grant funds.

Town employees who hold a commercial driver’s license and operate a commercial vehicle
are subject to federal Department of Transportation drug and alcohol testing regulations
(please refer to separate Town policy).




Article 5. Possession and Use of Alcohol, Marijuana, lllegal Drugs or Misuse of Prescribed
Drugs
Section 3. Discipline

Nothing in this article precludes the Town from imposing discipline, up to and including
fermination, on an employee for alcohol or drug abuse including the misuse of prescribed drugs or
marijuana, that impairs the employee’s ability to do his/her job when the Department Head or Town
Manager determines that such discipline is watranted.

Article 6. Smoke-Free Workplace Policy for the Town of Bridgton
Section 1. Background and Purpose

A. The Town of Bridgton is dedicated to providing a healthy, comfortable and productive work
environment for our employees, clients, customers and visitors.

B. It is the Town’s policy to provide a smoke-free environment for employees, clients and
visitors. This policy covers the smoking or vaping of any tobacco product and the use of
smokeless or spitting tobacco and applies to employees, clients, customers and visitors as
follows:

1. There will be no smoking, vaping or use of tobacco products within the Town’s
facilities and equipment at any time.

2. Town facilities, beaches and parks are smoke free zones.

Article 6. Smoke-Free Workplace Policy for the Town of Bridgton
Section 2. Procedure

A. Employees will be informed of this policy through signs posted in the facility, the policy
manual, and orientation and training provided by their supervisors.

B. Visitors will be informed of the policy through signs, and when necessary, Town employees
will explain the policy.

C. The Town will assist employees who wish to quit using tobacco by facilitating access to
recommended tobacco cessation programs and materials.

D. Any violation of this policy will be handled through the Town’s disciplinary procedure.

Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 1. Appointments

The employment of all personnel shall be the responsibility of the Town Manager in accordance
with 30-A MRS § 2636 as follows: The Town Manager shall appoint, subject to confirmation of
the Board of Selectmen, supervise and control the heads of departments under the control of the
Selectmen when the department is not headed by the Town Manager; shall appoint, supervise and
control all employees of the Town of Bridgton whom the municipal officers are required by statute
to appoint except members of boards, commissions, committees and single assessors; and appoint,
supervise and control all other officials, subordinates and assistants.

7




The following are approved Department Head positions:

Code Enforcement Officer

Community Development Director

Deputy Town Manager

Finance Offieer Director

Fire Chief

Police Chief

Public Services Director / Water Reclamation Superintendent Director
Recreation Director

Town Clerk

Health Officer

Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 2. Eligibility

It is the policy of the Board of Selectmen that all positions in the Town government be filled with
fully qualified persons who have been examined on the basis of job-related criteria. Eligibility for
employment shall be based on such an examination. Individuals will be recruited from a geographic
area as wide as necessary to assure obtaining well qualified persons for employment.

Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 3. Employee Selection

Screening and interviewing applicants will take place as authorized by the Town Manager, utilizing
the expertise of Department Heads to the fullest extent possible. Final appointments will be made
by the Town Manager except in the case of Department Heads.

Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 4. Blood and Legal Relationships

The Town has safeguards regarding the employment of persons related to one another, as follows:

A. An officer or employee of the Town may not appoint, employ, promote, advance, or
advocate for appointment, employment, promotion, or advancement, his/her relatives to
any position over which such officer or employee exercises direct or indirect financial,
administrative, supervisory or personnel control or authority. Exceptions may be granted
due to extenuating circumstances at the Town Manager’s discretion.

B. An individual may not be appointed, employed, promoted, or advanced in or to a position
in any department if such action has been advocated by a Town officer or employee who is
a relative of such individual, and who exercises any control or authority whatsoever over
such department.

C. For purposes of the above provisions, a relative is defined as grandfather, grandmother,
father, mother, son, daughter, grandson, granddaughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, first
cousin, nephew, niece, husband, wife, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-
in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, half-brother,
half-sister or domestic partner/significant other.



D. The Town Manager will provide specific instructions concerning employees affected by
this provision in a manner to safeguard the promotional opportunities of the individual, as
well as the objectivity of the process.

Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 5. Application for Employment

Applications for employment shall be made on a standard application form or by submission of a
résumé and completion of other such forms as may be required.

Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 6. Application and Testing

Candidates for positions shall be examined on the basis of job-related criteria. Such exaininations
may include such things as: application and résumé review, completion of written or skills test,
evaluation of education and job experience, personal interview, medical examination, and
background investigation. A medical examination, if required, will be post-offer and paid for by
the Town.

Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 7. Probationary Period

All persons appointed, promoted, or transferred to positions in the Town government shall serve a
probationary period of six (6) months,

Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 8. Seniority

Seniority shall be interpreted to mean the length of continuous service from the last day of hire of
a full-time employee. This date shall also represent an employee's initial anniversary date.

Article 7. Recruitment, Testing and Hiring
Section 9. Standard of Conduct

Employees of the Town of Bridgton are to regard themselves as public employees and as such they
are to be governed by the highest ideals of honor and integrity in all their public relationships in
order that they will merit the respect and confidence of the general public.

In addition to observing general standards and/or regulations of conduct from employees of any
organization, public employees are expected to treat everyone they serve with complete
impartiality and are thus prohibited from using their official positions for personal profit or the
profit of friends and family. Any violation is subject to disciplinary action including dismissal.

Article 8. Types of Employment
Section 1. Exempt/Non-Exempt

An Exempt Employee is an employee who is not eligible for overtime compensation. Actual hours
worked are based on business needs and may regularly exceed forty (40) hours in a work week.
However, insurance and benefits are based on a standard 40-hour work week.



A Non-Exempt Employee is an employee who is eligible for overtime compensation.

Article 8. Types of Employment
Section 2. Full-time Employment

Full-time employees are those employees scheduled to work forty (40) hours per work week on a
continuing or indefinite basis. Full-time employees shall receive all benefits and rights provided
herein.

Article 8. Types of Employment
Section 3. Part-time Employment

Parl-time employees are those employees scheduled to work less than forty (40) hours per work
week, but on a continuing or indefinite basis. Unless otherwise noted, part-time employees are not
eligible to receive benefits.

Article 8. Types of Employment
Section 4. Seasonal Employment

Seasonal employees are those employees scheduled to work for a specific season (may work
standard work week or less) and with the expectation of being laid off at the end of the season for
which appointed. A scasonal appointment is for a period of less than six (6) months. Unless
otherwise noted, seasonal employees are not eligible to receive benefits.

Article 8. Types of Employment
Section 5. Student Appointments

These appointments are on an infernship basis and afford students majoring in fields valuable to
public service an opportunity to gain work experience. Such appointments are for a definite period
of time, typically less than six (6) months. Compensation and other conditions for employment are
determined in accordance with the internship program of the sending school and applicable
portions of these Rules and Regulations. Unless otherwise noted, students are not eligible to receive
benefits.

Article 8. Types of Employment
Section 6. On-Call Employment

An appointment to render a specific type of service to the Town (such as firefighting or
snowplowing) on an irregular basis and only in response to a specific call to service from the Town.
Periods of service normally involve only a few hours. Unless otherwise noted, on-call employees
are not eligible to receive benefits.

Article 8. Types of Employment
Section 7. Temporary Employment

These appointments are made for definite but limited periods of time and are made when a special
project requires the addition of employees for a specific time, or to fill a position of an employee
on leave of absence or a long-term. These appointments may also include persons hired under an
existing federal manpower program and employment agencies. In such cases, the range of benefits
made available to the employee will be assessed in accordance with applicable federal or state
regulations and these Rules and Regulations.

10




Article 8, Types of Employment
Section 8. Contractual Appointments

An appointment that specifically acquires, orders, or purchases, by agreement or contract, from an
individual, contractor or entrepreneur, a specific service that is limited in quantity or length of time.
The terms of the employment arrangement shall be embodied in the contract.

Article 9. Lay-off Recall/Resignation
Section 1. Lay-off

An employee may be laid-off by competent authority for lack of work, lack of funds, or other
legitimate reasons. All employees shall be furnished a statement in writing setting forth the reasons
for the lay-off.

Article 9. Lay-off Recall/Resignation
Section 2. Lay-off Procedure

Full-time employees will, in so far as possible, be laid-off in order of seniority within the
department with "bumping” rights provided the employee is qualified to perform the duties of the
job to which he/she is to be transferred.

Article 9. Lay-off Recall/Resignation
Section 3. Lay-off Notice

Full-time employees shall be given a two (2) week notice before the effective date of any lay-off,
Employees who are not full-time (see Article 8) and full-time employees who have not completed
the probationary period may be laid-off at any time without recourse to the grievance procedure as
set forth in these Rules and Regulations.

Article 9. Lay-off Recall/Resignation Section
4. Lay-off Benefits Eligibility

While on lay-off status, a full-time employee may be eligible to continue group health, hospital
and major medical insurance coverage by reimbursing the Town, in advance, for premium costs.

Arxticle 9. Lay-off Recall/Resignation
Section 5. Re-Employment

Persons who are laid-off in good standing shall, provided that their qualifications are equal to the
qualifications of other applicants, be given preference for re-employment. In the case of
substantially equal qualifications among former employees secking re-employment, preference
shall be given to the person who had the greatest seniority within the hiring department at the time
of lay-off. For purposes of this Article, seniority rights shall be retained for six (6) months after the
date of lay-off.

Article 9. Lay-off Recall/Resignation
Section 6. Resignation

Any employee wishing to leave Town employment in good standing shall provide the Department
Head with a written notice of intent to terminate employment and the reasons for leaving a minimum

11




of ten (10) working days prior 1o the effective date. Upon separation, the Town shall pay all wages
owed, as well as earned vacation pay (Article 26.1.C) due to the employee, if any, on the next regular
pay day, and accrued sick leave, if any, pursuant to Article 28.5.

Failure to provide such notice may be grounds for denying future re-employment by the Town.
Good standing means that the employee’s separation is for a reason other than discipline,
performance, or failure to meet job responsibilities. The “good standing” principle is not applicable
in regard to the death of the employee.

The effective date of separation shall be at the close of business on the last day the employee reports
for duty. All separating employees shall turn in any Town-owned property in their possession,
including keys, prior to the end of their last working day. Separating employees shall also leave a
forwarding address with their Department Head or with the Finance Officer for the purposes of
forwarding Internal Revenue Service forms and any remaining checks for unpaid compensation.

If the employee agrees, the Town Manager or designee shall conduct a confidential exit interview.

Article 10. Position Description and Compensation
Section 1. Policy

The Town Manager shall maintain a list of positions in the Town's service by Job Description. The
Town Manager shall revise and/or update each Job Description as needed. Whenever appropriate,
the Job Description shall include in it any specific educational, training or physical requirements
that may apply. Regardless of their Job Description, all employees are expected to perform job
assignments as directed by their supervisors, provided they are capable of doing so.

Article 10, Position Description and Compensation
Section 2. Compensation

The Town Manager shall determine an entry level wage/salary for each Job Description which

shall be revised from time to time. Thereafter, the annual compensation for each position will be
determined by:

A. annual performance evaluations.
B. longevity as defined in this Article.
C. the pay for comparable work; and

D. any overall budget restrictions that may be imposed by the Board of Selecimen in
connection with the preparation of the Annual Town Budget.

12




Article 10. Position Description and Compensation
Section 3. Longevity

In order to encourage the retention of the Town’s employees a longevity program is implemented
as follows:

Upon the completion of five (5) consecutive years of service $37.50 per week

Upon the completion of ten (10) consecutive years of service - $47.50 per week
Upon the completion of fifteen (15) consecutive years of service - $57.50 per week
Upon the completion of twenty (20) consecutive years of service - $67.50 per week

Article 10. Position Description and Compensation
Section 4. Long-standing Part-time Employees

In recognition of a long-standing part-time position, after five (5) continuous years of service to
the Town, the Board of Selectmen may authorize the prorating of longevity payments based on the

employee’s workweek in proportion to a 40-hour workweek as outlined in the longevity payment
steps.

Article 10. Position Description and Compensation
Section 5. New Employees

New employees shall normally be paid the entry level wage/salary for the position for which they
have been hired. Exceptions may be made by the Town Manager for employees with extraordinary
experience, skills or educational qualifications.

Article 10. Position Description and Compensation
Section 6. Promotions/Transfers

‘The compensation for employees who are promoted or transferred shall be established by the Town
Manager and shall be consistent with the established compensation for the position and with
budgetary requirements.

A full-time employee who is transferred or promoted and does not meet or otherwise comply with the
work standards of the new position shall be transferred to the previous position held, if possible, or to
another position to which he or she is deemed to qualify, if one is available. Reasonable efforts shall
be made to schedule such transfers so as to protect the employee's job security.

Article 11. Hours of Work and Standard Work Week
Section 1. Policy

A standard work week shall be the week commencing at 12:00 a.m. on Thursday and expiring at
11:59 p.m. on Wednesday. Standard hours of work shall normally consist of five (5) working days
of eight (8) hours each (except in the case of flexible scheduling) for a total of forty (40) hours per
week.

13



Avrticle 11. Hours of Work and Standard Work Week
Section 2. Scheduling

The Town Manager and the Department Heads shall establish schedules of working hours.

Article 11, Hours of Work and Standard Work Week
Section 3. Posting

All departments and divisions or sections thereof shall post the regular hours of work for the
respective groups in a conspicuous place.

Article 12, Overtime
Section 1. Policy

When circumstances warrant it, overtime work may be required. All employees who are not exempt
from the overtime provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (hereafter, FL.SA) shall be
compensated for overtime work by being paid at one and one-half (1-1/2) times their regular rate
of pay for each hour worked in excess of forty (40) hours per workweek. This policy does not
prevent the use of Section 7K exemptions allowed for police and firefighters if it is appropriate to
use them. The Town Manager may adjust work schedules to minimize the need to pay overtime as
permitied by the FLSA. All overtime work must be authorized by an appropriate supervisor or by
the Town Manager in advance.

Article 13. Compensatory Time
Section 1. Policy

A. The granting of compensatory time to employees who are not exempt from the overtime
provisions of the FLSA in lieu of paying them overtime as outlined in Axticle 8.1 shall be
discouraged. In those instances when compensatory time is granted to employees in lieu of
overtime payment, it shall be granted at one and one half (1-1/2) hours for each hour worked
in excess of forty (40) hours in a workweek, it shall be granted only with the employee's
agreement, and it shall be granted under the conditions and to the maximums allowed by
the FLSA. Employees who are exempt from the overtime provisions of the Act are
ineligible to receive overtime pay, however, those employees may be granted compensatory
time off at the discretion of the Town Manager or in accordance with policy decisions made
by the Board of Selectmen.

B. Employees who accrue compensatory time shall not accrue more than eighty (80) hours at
any time. No more than eighty (80) hours shall be carried forward into the next fiscal year.
An employee will be paid for compensatory lime accrued in excess of eighty (80) hours in
the next pay period, It is the responsibility of the Department Heads to monitor their
employee’s accrual of compensatory time and encourage its use rather than incur any
payouts when such time is accrued.

4




Arxticle 14, Emergency Call Back
Section 1. Policy

All full-time hourly employees of the Town of Bridgton shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours
for emergency callbacks. Employees who actually perform more than two howrs of work in
emergency callback situations shall be paid one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee’s reguiar
hourly rate unless and until the emergency callback runs in to the employee’s regularly scheduled
hours, during which times the employee will receive their regular rate of pay.

Article 15. Attendance
Section 1. Policy

Employees shall be at their respective places of work in accordance with the general or
departmental regulations pertaining to the hours of work. It is the responsibility of the employee to
see that the immediate supervisor is advised of the reason for any absence not previously approved
at least one (1) hour prior to the beginning of the unexpected absence.

Article 15, Attendance
Section 2. Records

Each Department Head shall be responsible for maintaining daily attendance and work records and
shall furnish weekly reports to the Finance Office. Upon approval by the supervisor of an
employee’s request for time off, a copy shall be provided to the Finance Office immediately. Each
employee must then indicate the time/dates of their leave on the electronic staff calendar. The type
of leave shall be reported on the weekly payroll sheet under the appropriate categories

Exempt employees shall complete a Request for Time-Off form which shall be signed by the Town
Manager or Deputy Town Manager if the Town Manager is not available and submitted to the
Finance Office. If a Department Head uses approved leave time during any pay period, they shall
submit a Salaried Employee-Weekly Reporting Sheet (or an approved form in use by the Finance
Office), indicating the type of leave taken during the payroll period. They must also fill in the same
on the electronic staff calendar.

Article 15, Attendance
Section 3. Payroll Reporting Sheet

Weekly or as otherwise approved, each person shall be responsible for completing and signing
their payroll report sheet on the form approved and in use by the Finance Office. The Department
Head shall be responsible for reviewing and signing the employee’s payroll report sheet prior to
submittal to the Finance Office. Each employee must accurately indicate on the payroll report sheet
their start and end time, lunch break, regular time, any overtime if they are approved for such, and
any leaves taken for the payroll period covered, including but not limited to sick leave, vacation

leave, compensatory time, holiday pay, and time away without pay as approved by the Town
Manager.

Where an employee is unexpectedly out on the day that payroll report sheets must be turned into the
Finance Office, their supervisor may complete a tentative sheet to be used to report the various
information for the payroll to be processed. However, the employee must go to the Finance Office
upon their return and formally sign the payroll report sheet(s) submitted on their behalf.

15



Article 16. Promotions and Transfers
Section 1. Present Employees

The Board of Selectmen desires that Town employees be afforded a maximum opportunity for
advancement in the Town's service. Accordingly, current employees are encouraged to apply for
and shall be given careful consideration in the filling of vacancies. However, it is recognized that,
the Town may require the vacancy to be filled by an outside individual. Such a decision shall be
made only afier careful review of the qualifications of all applicants who apply for the position.

Article 17. Employee Performance Evaluation
Section . Policy

Employee performance evaluations shall be in writing utilizing a standard form. Completed
performance evaluations shall be made part of the employee's personnel file. In all cases, completed
evaluations will be discussed with the employee by the immediate supervisor and, if deemed
necessary, by the Town Manager.

Article 17. Employee Performance Evaluation
Section 2. Frequency of Evaluation

Employee performance evaluations will be conducted at the following minimum intervals:

A. Probationary employees shall be evaluated by the end of the first three months of
employment. The Department Heads shall, at this time, report the employee's progress to
the Town Manager and recommend whether the employee’s employment should continue.

Immediately prior to conclusion of the sixth month probationary period, the Department
Head shall again evaluate the employee's progress and a written recommendation shall be
submitted to the Town Manager on whether the employee should be retained.

B. Commencing with the employee's anniversary date of employment, performance
evaluations shall be conducted at least annually.

Article 18. Grievance Procedure
Section 1. Definition

A grievance is a dispute between the employee and the employer concerning the interpretation or
application of the terms of these Rules and Regulations or departmental rules. In the case of a
disciplinary action, the grievance procedure applies only to the extent that such action is based on
an interpretation or application of these Rules and Regulations.

Article 18, Grievance Procedure
Section 2. Procedure

A. Employees should attempt to address grievances informally with their supervisor before
initiating the formal grievance process. Both supervisors and employees are expected to
make every effort to resolve problems as they arise.

16



B. Any full-time employee who deems himself or herself aggrieved shall, within five (5)
calendar days from the time the acts or omissions giving rise to the grievance were or should
have been discovered, whichever occurred first, bring such grievance to the attention of
his/her Department Head. The Department Head shall render a decision within five (5)
calendar days.

C. If the employee is not satisfied with the decision of the Department Head, the employee
may, within five (5) calendar days from receiving such decision, bring the matter to the
attention of the Town Manager, who shall render a written decision within seven (7)
calendar days.

D. Should the employee be dissatisfied with the Town Manager’s decision, the employee may
make an appropriate appeal to the Personnel Appeals Board of the Town should such a
Board be established by Ordinance.

The above time limits may be extended by mutual agreement,

Article 19, Employee Training
Section 1, Policy

The Town of Bridgton is committed to the maintenance of a well-trained and efficient staff. The
Town shall attempt to make opportunities for professional development available to its employees
within the framework of its organizational needs and priorities. Employees, as a condition of
employment, shall attend and participate in such training programs and courses as may be directed
by the Department Head or Town Manager and for which the Town assumes the cost.

Article 20. Outside/Non-Town Employment
Section 1. Policy

No full-time employee shall, during non-duty hours, engage in any employment activity or
enterprise which is incompatible or in conflict with his/her duties with the Town or which hinders
the employee in the impartial or efficient performance of his/her duties.

Article 21, Reimbursement of Expenses
Section 1. Policy

Employees shall be reimbursed for actual expenses incurted in the use of their own vehicles for

Town business. Whenever possible and practicable, the Town Manager shall approve such use in
advance. '

The Town of Bridgton shall reimburse an employee who uses their personal vehicle for Town
business based upon the then prevailing Internal Revenue Service vehicle reimbursement rate. The

employee shall present a documented request monthly for such reimbursement unless other
arrangements have been made with the Town Manager.

17



Employees who are asked to use their personal vehicles to perform work for the Town must at all
times carry their own automobile insurance.

Article 21. Reimbursement of Expenses
Section 2. Reporting

Request for reimbursement for expenses shall be submitted on a standard expense form subimitted
to the Finance Office. Such request shall be signed by the Department Head for subordinate
personnel. All request forms shall be reviewed and signed by the Town Manager prior to payment.
Receipts for lodging, meals, registrations, toll cards (and gasoline if appropriate), shall accompany
the expense request form.

Article 22. Political Activities
Section 1. Policy

While working full-time for the Town, employees shall refrain from seeking election to any office
in the Town government. Town employees shall not circulate petitions or campaign literature for
elective Town officials, or in any way be concerned with soliciting or receiving subscriptions,
contributions, or political advertisements from or for any person for any political election
pertaining to the government of the Town at any time. This rule is not to be construed to prevent
the Town employees from becoming or continuing to be, members of any political organization;
from attending political organizational meetings; from directly or indirectly participating in any
elections and supporting or seeking any non-Town office by such Town employee or other nominee
or official thereof, during non-working hours; from expressing their views on political matters; or
from voting with complete freedom in any election.

Artiele 23. Disciplinary Action
Section 1. Policy

The Town Manager shall have authority to take disciplinary action, which may include such
remedies as verbal or written reprimands, suspension without pay, demotion or dismissal. Such
authority may be delegated by the Town Manager, except that supervisor below the Department
Head level do not have the authority to suspend, demote or dismiss any employee.

Article 23, Disciplinary Action
Section 2. Consultation

Whenever a Department Head is confronted by a situation for which suspension without pay,
demotion, or dismissal is being considered, the Department Head shall delay the decision until the
Department Head has consulted with the Town Manager.

Arxticle 23, Disciplinary Action
Section 3. Just Cause and Notification

All disciplinary action involving suspension without pay, demotion or dismissal shall be for just
cause, and notice of such action against an employee must be in writing and shall occur no later than
effective date of the action. Such notice shall specify the penalty and contain a statement of the
reason(s) for taking such action. No suspension without pay, demotion or dismissal shall take place

I8



without there first being a meeting between the employee and the person proposing to take the
action to discuss the proposed action.

Article 24, Leaves of Absence
Section 1. Leave without Pay

A full-time employee may be granted a leave of absence without pay by the Town Manager for a
period deemed necessary for the purpose of the leave. The employee must use all acerued vacation
and holiday entitlement before commencing his/her unpaid leave of absence. Employees granted
an unpaid leave are expecied to return to work upon expiration of a granted leave or to have
arranged for an extension of the leave prior to its expiration.

No employee shall receive a salary or Town paid fringe benefits while on an unpaid leave of
absence. Employment and leave of absence shall terminate if the employee accepts other
employment. When computing length of service for any reason, time spent on an unpaid leave of
absence will not be computed. In effect, this changes the anniversary date of the employee for
salary increases and other benefits.

Article 24, Leaves of Absence
Section 2. Reserve Service Leave

Full-time employees who are members of the organized military reserves and who are required to
perform field duties will be granted the necessary time off for such duties. For any such period of
reserve service leave, not to exceed seventeen (17) days, the Town will pay the employee the
employee's regular compensation.

Article 24. Leaves of Absence
Section 3. Bereavement Leave

In the event of the death of a spouse, domestic partner, child, stepchild, parent or stepparent of an
employee, the employee shall be granted up to five (5) days leave of absence, with pay, to make
household adjustments and/or to attend funeral services. In the event of the death of grandparents,
grandchildren, in-laws, siblings, or relatives living in the same household as the employee, the
employee shall be granted up to three (3) days leave of absence, with pay, to make household
adjustments and/or to attend funeral services. If requested by the employee, more time off may be
granted by the Town Manager, with or without pay, depending on the circumstances.

Article 24, Lieaves of Absence
Section 4. Unautherized Absence

Unauthorized absences from work for a period of three (3) days or more without permission of the
Department Head shall be considered by the Town as being voluntary resignation by the employee.
Unauthorized absences from work for a period of three (3) days or more by a Department Head
without permission of the Town Manager shall be considered by the Town as being voluntary
resignation by the employee.

19



Article 25. Holidays
Section 1. Policy

All full-time employees, including those in the probationary period, who have been employed by
the Town for at least thirty (30) days, shall be entitled to paid holidays as follows:
A. New Year’s Day

Martin Luther King Jr. Day
Presidents’ Day

Patriot’s Day

Memorial Day

Juneteenth

Independence Day

Labor Day

Indigenous Peoples Day
Veterans Day

R T EpQ@FREHUOR

Thanksgiving Day
L. *The Day After Thanksgiving
M. Christmas Day

N. One-half (1/2) day before Christmas Day (except if Christmas Day falls on a Saturday
or Sunday- see Article 25, Section 2)

*The day after Thanksgiving is a paid holiday for non-union/non-contractual employees only.

Article 25. Holidays
Section 2. Special Cases

When a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be deemed a holiday. When a holiday
falls on a Saturday, the previous Friday shall be deemed a holiday. Should a holiday fall within an
employee’s preapproved vacation period, it shall not be counted as part of annual vacation
allowance. An employee whose normal day off falls on a holiday will be given another day off in
lieu of the holiday. An employee working a holiday shall be given an alternate day off.

Article 25. Holidays
Section 3. Eligibility

In order to be eligible for holiday pay, an employee is required to work the last regularly scheduled
workday before the holiday, and the first regularly scheduled workday immediately following the
holiday. An employee is exempt from this requirement if the employee has been granted leave as
provided for in Articles 24.2 and 24.3 or by special permission granted by the Town Manager.

20



Article 26. Vacations
Section 1. Policy

Full-time employees shall accrue vacation based on the following schedule:

After one full year of employment.............coooeiiiiiiiiiiiiin, Ten (10) days of vacation
WEHEE S i 55 i it i, o RS 0,00, AR ST SO AR Fifteen (15) days of vacation
Youts | 0—19: sisicimanscnmmes v samsss s s ias i a s s s S R s Twenty (20) days of vacation
2O YOOI o ommn s o s o S S B S A S S R A R Twenty-Five (25) days of vacation

A person successfully completing the probationary period may take up to two (2) days of
vacation prior to their first anniversary date of employment which shall be part of the two (2)
weeks of vacation accrued after one (1) year of continuous service.

A. Vacations shall be granted at such time or times as shall be mutually agreeable to the
employees and the Department Heads, except a vacation shall not disrupt departmental
operations. Due consideration shall be given to an employee's seniority in regard to
scheduling vacations.

B. Employees will receive any unused, accrued vacation upon termination of employment.

C. Employees shall be permitted to carry-forward a maximum of two (2) weeks’ unused
vacation. Vacation in excess of two (2) weeks will be forfeited if unused by the employee
in the year it accrued. In extenuating circumstances beyond the control of the employee,
the Town Manager may grant an extension of time to allow the employee an opportunity to
use accrued vacation time.

Article 27. Personal Days
Section 1: Eligibility

Employees beginning their fifth5) third (3) year of continuous service shall receive three (3)
personal days per year, Personal days must be used in the year received and shall not be carried
forward into the next year. The use of Personal Days requires 24 hours notice on a form
prescribed by the Finance Office to and approval by the Department Head or, for Department
Heads, the Town Manager.

Article 28. Sick Leave
Section 1. Eligibility and Accrual

Sick leave for full-time employees shall accrue at a rate of one (1) day for each calendar month of
service accumulative to a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) working days (960 hours). For
the purpose of this section the first month of the employee's services shall be counted as a full
month of service if the employment begins on or before the fifteenth day of the month.

21



Article 28, Sick Leave
Section 2. Sick Leave Usage

Sick leave may be used only in the following cases: personal illness or physical incapacity of such a
degree as to render the employee unable to perform the duties of his/her position or for purposes of
providing care for members of the employee's immediate family (defined as members connected by
blood or law). If the employee is capable of performing other available work, then Section 3
Transitional Duties may be utilized at the discretion of the Town Manager. If requested, the employee
shall furnish to the Department Head a certificate from the employee’s medical provider.

Additionally, sick leave may be used by the employee for the purpose of attending doctor’s
appointments including appointment for those in the employee’s immediate family as defined in
the prior paragraph.

Article 28. Sick Leave
Section 3. Transitional Duties

Transitional duty programs are an important component of effective return to work programs and
are designed to help an employee who has suffered injury or illness transition back into the
workforce as quickly and safely as possible. If it has been determined by a medical provider, by
written certificate, that personal illness or physical incapacity renders the employee unable to
perform their regular duties, whenever possible the Town of Bridgton will provide and support
transitional work which may include work in various other departments. Efforts to return the
employee to full work capacity will be made a top priority in the best interest of both the employee
and the Town. The employee must provide a written certificate from a medical provider before
they can return to their original duties.

Article 28. Sick Leave
Section 4. Sick Leave Accounting

Absences for a fraction of a part of a day that are chargeable to sick leave in accordance with this
section shall be charged proportionately in an amount not smaller than a half hour (30 minutes).
Sick leave usage shall be recorded regularly on the payroll. The Town Manager shall review all
sick leave records periodically and shall investigate any cases which indicate abuse of the privilege.

Article 28. Sick Leave
Section 5. Sick Leave Conversion Benefits

A full-time employee who terminates his/her employment with the Town is eligible to receive
thirty percent (30%) of the value of their accrued sick days up to a maximum of thirty-six (36) days
(288 hours), at the employee's present rate of pay, provided the employee has completed at least
ten (10) continuous years of employment.

A full-time employee who terminates his/her employment with the Town is eligible to receive fifty
percent (50%) of the value of their accrued sick days up to a maximum of sixty (60) days (480
hours), at the employee’s present rate of pay, provided the employee has completed at least twenty
(20) continuous years of employment.

A full-time employee hired after July 1, 2019, who terminates histher employment with the Town
is eligible to receive thirty percent (30%) of the value of the total up to a maximum of thirty (30)

22



days (240 howrs), to date accrued sick days, at the employee's present rate of pay and provided the
employee has completed at least ten (10) continuous years of employment.

A full-time employee hired after July 1, 2019, who terminates his/her employment with the Town
is eligible {o receive fifty percent (50%) of the value of the total up to a maximum of fifty-five (55)
days (440 hours), to date accrued sick days, at the employee’s present rate of pay and provided the
employee has completed at least twenty (20) continuous years of employment.

Article 28. Sick Leave
Section 6. Abuse of Sick Leave

Willful abuse of sick leave privileges shall be cause for dismissal.

Article 28. Sick Leave
Section 7. Sick Leave and Worker's Compensation

Employees are eligible for Worker's Compensation for a service-connected injury and may elect to
take earned sick leave in addition to Worker's Compensation to the extent that it provides no more
than full regular pay.

Article 28. Sick Leave
Section 8. Physical Examinations

When there is sufficient cause to warrant doing so, the Town Manager may require an employee
to undergo a physical examination in order to determine the employee's fitness to continue on the
job. The physical examination shall be conducted by a physician designated by the Town Manager
and the expense thereof shall be borne by the Town. The designated physician shall report the
results of the physical examination directly to the Town Manager and the employee. An employee
is free to obtain a judgment as to her/her fitness to continue work from his/her own physician at
his/her own expense and to submit same to the Town Manager.

Article 28. Sick Leave
Section 9. Family Medical Leave

A. Family Medical Leave (FMLA) shall be granted to eligible employees pursuant to current
state or federal laws and regulations.

B. Any employee who is eligible for and who receives FMLA shall continue to receive the
Town’s paid portion of the health insurance premium,

C. Anemployee who is eligible for and who receives FMLA shall be required to use available
paid leave prior to utilizing unpaid leave. Any paid leave time used shall count towards the
employee’s FMLA leave entitlement.

Article 29, Jury Duty
Section 1. Policy

An employee summoned to jury duty will be excused from his/her work for the required period
necessary to perform jury duty. If the jury is excused prematurely from duty during the time of

23



service, the employee is expected to report for work as usual. While on jury duty, an employee
shall receive his/her full regular pay.

Article 30. Employee Benefit Programs
Section 1. Retirement Plan

The Town will contribute six percent (6%) of the employee's gross wages (including overtime
payments) to an IRA account maintained by the employee. Employees hired after July 1, 2020,
will not have the option of a self-directed IRA. Employees will have the opportunity to contribute
to the VALIC deferred compensation program. This practice will continue until such time as a
different plan may be adopted.

Article 30. Employee Benefit Programs
Section 2. Social Security

In addition to retirement benefits outlined in Article 30.1 the Town of Bridgton participates jointly
with employees in social security payments. Benefits provided include a retirement feature,
survivors benefit payments if death occurs before retirement, disability insurance and Medicare
coverage.

Article 30. Employee Benefit Programs
Section 3. Health Insurance

All employees hired for full-time employment after July 26, 1994, shall be responsible for paying
fifty percent (50%) of the cost of any health insurance coverage beyond that of a single subscriber
should such coverage be desired by the employee. The Town will provide no benefits except those
required by law to any category of employee except full-time. This will apply to first time hires
and employees who leave employment and return at a later date.

The Town, by policy, provides a health insurance plan currently through the Maine Municipal
Employees Health Trust (MMEHT). The Town has the option to select other plans or provider(s).

Employees who elect to receive health insurance through the Town will pay an insurance co-pay
of $5.00 per week per person covered by the health plan not to exceed $10.00 per week. (i.e.:
Employee only $5.00, Employee & Spouse $10.00; Employee & Children $10.00; Employee,
Spouse & Children $10.00). These deductions shall be made for forty-eight (48) payroll periods
per year.

Effective July 27, 2021, employees have the option of enrolling a domestic partner as defined in
the Definition Section of this Policy. An Affidavit of Domestic Partnership, in a form prescribed
by the Maine Municipal Health Trust (MMEHT), shall be submitted to the MMEHT.

Any employee who has comparable group health insurance coverage from any other source outside
of the plan that the Town is providing to its employees, MMEHT, may elect to drop their participation
in the Town’s health insurance plan. Proof of comparable coverage must be provided to the Town.
The employee will be required to sign a form electing not to enroll on an annual basis.

Employees electing to drop coverage from the Maine Municipal Employees Health Trust Plan will
be paid to do so in the following manner:

24



A. Fifty percent (50%) of the single level of the current health insurance plan will be paid
through the Town’s payroll system over the fifty-two (52) weeks.

Employees hired after July 26, 1994, may only get the buyout by dropping health insurance
coverage in its entirety.

Under certain circumstances, coverage for children may be extended until the age of twenty-six
(26). A summary of benefits explaining Plan features will be provided at the time of orientation.

Regularly scheduled part-time employees may purchase health insurance at the Town's cost in
accordance with Maine Municipal Heath Trust rules and regulations.

Article 30. Employee Benefit Programs
Section 4. Health Reimbursement Arrangement

An employee is eligible to participate in the Town’s Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) if
they are enrolled in the Town’s health insurance plan. Eligible employees must comply with the
plan’s documentation and reimbursement limits in effect. Employees not participating in the
Town’s health insurance plan are not eligible for the HRA benefit.

Article 30. Employee Benefit Programs
Section 5. Dental Insurance

Town participation in the cost of Group Dental Insurance under the Maine Municipal Association
Dental Plan will be one hundred percent (100%) of the employee's premium. Spouse and/or
dependent coverage under the Plan will be at the employee's expense.

Article 30. Employee Benefit Programs
Section 6. Worker's Compensation

Employees are eligible for benefits under the Worker's Compensation Act for a personal injury or
compensable illness arising out of and in the course of employment (see also Article 28.7).

Article 31. Cell Phone
Section 1. Purpose

The Town of Bridgton issues cell phones to certain employees for the purpose of carrying out
various governmental functions and services for our citizens. This Policy shall guide the use of
Town cell phones by empioyees

Article 31. Cell Phone
Section 2, Issuance and Respensibility

Upon the recommendation by the Department Head to the Town Manager, the Town may authorize
the issuance of a cell phone to an employee to assist in their delivery of services to the public. The
cell phone shall remain the property of the Town of Bridgton and is to be used for the conduct of
Town business purposes. The employee is responsible for the care and proper use of the cell phone
assuring that it is not exposed to situations that could damage the cell phone or impair it’s
functionality. Normal wear and use of the cell phone may cause damage that the Town shall repair
upon notice to the employee’s supervisor.

25



Town-issued cell phones may not be used by the employee for any private business, private revenue
generation or private recreational purposes or for any illegal purposes. Inappropriate use is also
prohibited, including but not limited to using a Town-issued cell phone for calls that are charged on
a per minute basis for adult based activities, gambling and the like. Upon becoming aware of such
unacceptable use(s), the Town may choose to recall the issued cell phone and issue appropriate
disciplinary actions including termination of the employee if the conditions warrant.

Article 31. Cell Phone
Section 3. Personal Use

The Town recognizes that, from time to time, the employee may make a personal call using the
Town-issued cell phone. Every effort should be made to limit such usage and excessive usage that
results in additional fees will be the responsibility of the employee.

Article 32. Electronic Equipment, Communication and Use
Section 1. Purpose

The Town of Bridgton, in an age of growing technology and electronic communication, is
implementing a policy to clearly define employee expectations and responsibilities.

Article 32. Electronic Equipment, Communication and Use
Section 2. Obligations, Responsibilities and Use

A. Town employees may not use the System (defined below) to send, receive, create or store
electronic communications upon the System, in a manner that is illegal, disruptive to others,
or that interferes with the Town’s business activities.

B. All Town employees are prohibited from using any part of the System to harass others, or
to download, obtain, display, store, receive, duplicate, copy to any memory media or to
transmit:

1. Any information that is sexually explicit, obscene, or of a sexual nature, that contain
libelous or defamatory material, or that would not be permitted on any bulletin located
on Town property.

2. Any cthnic, racial or religious slurs, or anything that is, or may be construed as,
disparagement of others based on race, color, national origin, ancestry, gender, sexual
orientation, age, disability, religious or political beliefs, or any other basis prohibited
by law; or:

3. Any communications that are derogatory of fellow employees (except as may be
required as part of the Town’s business activities). The System may also not be used to
solicit anyone for any commercial, religious, charitable, or political causes, or for
outside organizations. Except as otherwise provided below, the System may not be used
for any purpose that is not related to Town business.

C. Electronic equipment may be authorized to be taken off site by the assigned employee
allowing them to complete their position responsibilities. In such instances, the use of this
equipment is restricted to the Town employee only, and the equipment must be returned to
the Town when the specific issue requiring offsite work is satisfied.

26



D. Electronic equipment is made available to employees allowing them to complete their
position responsibilities. They are held accountable for the care and use of their electronic
equipment and must control access to it. The use of the equipment by non-authorized
personnel and citizens is generally prohibited. Any exceptions shall be approved first by
the Town Manager.

E. Proper uses of email, voicemail, software and internet is the responsibility of the employee.
Town-issued e-mail addresses shall be used to transmit and receive messages internally and
externally on matters of business connected to the Town. The occasional employee use of
e-mail with permissible content for personal matters is not prohibited but is discouraged,
Voicemail is used to leave messages for employees regarding matters of a business nature.
Voicemail boxes will occasionally be emptied to free up System space.

Recreation software is usually part of the full package of software the manufacturer may include
at the time the computer is constructed. Such software is considered non-essential to the work of
the employee and the Town and therefore the employee assigned any electronic equipment is solely
responsible for assuring such software programs are not downloaded, accessed or used, nor is it
permissible to allow any other employee or citizen the use of such electronic equipment and devices
at any time for this or similar purposes.

Axticle 33, Social Media
Section 1. Purpose

The Town of Bridgton recognizes that social media can be a valuable way to communicate with
members of the community and relay important information. Social media includes websites such
as Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, LinkedlIn, blogs, and/or any other website where one posts or
communicates information in a public or quasi-public Internet forum. The purpose of this Policy
is to establish guidelines and rules for employees regarding uses of or presence on social media
sites that have a connection to their work for the Town of Bridgton.

The Town of Bridgton has its own social media presence and only certain, designated employees
will be asked to create and/or maintain the Town’s social media profiles. An employee may act on
behalf of the Town in the social media context only with express authorization from the Town
Manager or designee. Any and all content created for or on the Town’s social media accounts and
systems, and the accounts themselves, are property of the Town of Bridgton. The Town of Bridgton
has ultimate discretion over the content posed on its social media accounts and may remove or alter
content at any time.

Article 33. Social Media
Section 2. Personal Use

The Town of Bridgton understands that employees are free to create and maintain personal social
media profiles during non-work hours and on non-work equipment. Personal use of social media
during the workday is discouraged, and to the extent that an employee uses social media sites
during the workday, such use must not interfere with the performance of the employee’s job duties.
In addition, certain web sites that are reasonably regarded as extreme or offensive (or by way of
example, sites featuring hate groups or hate speech; sites containing sexual content including but

27




not limited to pornography; or sites that promote or advocate violence) should never be accessed
using the Town of Bridgton systems.

Even when employees are engaging in off duty use of social media sites, their actions, words and/or
conduct may reflect upon themselves and the Town in a way that impacts their employment. When
and if an employee makes any Town related comment on their personal social media, the employee
must make it explicit and clear that the comment is made in their personal capacity and not as a
representative of or on behalf of the Town

The Town understands that occasional personal use of Town computers, networks and other IT
resources and communication systems while at work may be necessary so long as it does not
involve unprofessional or inappropriate content and does not interfere with employment
responsibilities or productivity. Occasional personal use must be exercised in a manner consistent
with all other provisions of this Policy.

Article 33, Social Media
Section 3. Prohibited Actions/Uses

Employees must refrain from making discriminatory, harassing, threatening, violent, abusive or
obscene statements or comments in a way that impacts their employment. When and if an employee
makes any Town related comment on their personal social media, the employee must make it
explicit and clear that the comment is made in their personal capacity and not as a representative
of or on behalf of the Town.

Employees must refrain from making any discriminatory, harassing, threatening, violent, abusive
or obscene statements or comments related in any way to their employment, or publicizing any
confidential information which they may have access to due to employment with the Town.

Violation of this section may lead to discipline, up to and including immediate termination of
employment,

The prohibited use of social media in no way restricts, and should not be construed to restrict or
inhibit, employees’ right to engage in protected concerted activity, such as discussing wages, hours,
or other working conditions, through social media, ot as a restriction on an employee’s right to free
protected free speech, including political speech, as permitted by law.

You are personally responsible for what you communicate in social media. Remember: the Internet
does not forget. If you are uncertain or concerned about the work-related effect of any statement
or post, refrain from making the communication until you discuss it with your supervisor or
Department Head.

28



Article 34, Safety
Section 1, Policy

All accidents involving injury to personnel, no matter how minor, during the work schedule, must
be reported immediately to the Department Head and a Town’s Incident Report form must be
completed and submitted to the Finance Office.

A. All employees suffering an accident will report such accident as soon as possible to their
immediate supervisor, who shall make a determination as to whether a doctor's examination
shall be required; if so, such examination shall be at the Town's expense.

B. Time lost because of accidents incurred while on duty will not be deducted for any reasons
when computing the length of service.

Axticle 35. Employee Organizations
Section 1. Employee Organizations

The policies and procedures relating to relationships with employee organizations will be
governed by applicable State laws.

Article 36, Personnel Records
Section 1. Policy

Appropriate records will be maintained on each employee of the Town. Any employee may review
his/her file in the presence of the Department Head or designee by prior arrangement during normal
office hours, Monday through Friday.

Article 37. Suggestions
Section 1. Policy

The Board of Selectmen welcomes constructive suggestions from employees which might help to
improve service to the citizens of Bridgton and enhance relationships between the Town and its
employees. Such suggestions should be submitted to the Town Manager for review and for
submission to the Board of Selectmen. The Board of Selectmen may reward employees with
additional compensation for constructive suggestions that have resulted in direct cost savings to
the Town.

Article 38. Definitions
Section 1. Terms

Chief Administrative Officer - The Town Manager.

Department Heads - An employee who has been delegated the jurisdiction over one or more
primary service functions of Town Government. Department Heads include:

Code Enforcement Officer
Community Development Director/Planner
Deputy Town Manager

29



Finance Officer-Director

Fire Chief

Police Chief

Public Services Director / Water Reclamation Director

Recreation Director
Town Clerk
Health Officer

Domestic Partner - The partner of an employee who:

A. Is a mentally competent adult as is the employee;
Has been legally domiciled with the employee for at least twelve (12) months.
Is not legally married to or legally separated from another individual.

Is the sole partner of the employee and expects to remain so;

Is not a sibling of the employee; and

B H B 8

Is jointly responsible with the employee for each other’s common welfare as evidenced by

joint living arrangements, joint financial arrangements or joint ownership of real or personal
property (MRS 26 §843 (7)).

t

Electronic Communication - means all electronic communications, data, software, files, and other
information created, modified, located upon, received or transmitted by, or stored upon, any part
of the System, including, but not limited to e-mail, voicemail, and Internet usage and wireless
electronic devices that access the System.

Electronic Equipment - means any hardware or devices that are designed to communicate with
or without connecting wires, utilize technology that allow the devices to interact with each other
and may include but are not limited to computers, cell phones, smart phones, GPS and GIS
equipment and all other such devices that are purchased by tax dollars and assigned to employees
of the Town to allow them to complete their position tasks and responsibilities. In those cases
where an employee is authorized to use their own electronic equipment by the Town Manager, the
same requirements and conditions shall apply.

Employee - Any person appointed to a position by the Town Manager and/or the Board of
Selectmen, except those that are engaged in contract work through separate agreements with the
Town.

Employment, Types of - See Article 8.

Immediate Family - grandfather, grandmother, father, mother, son, daughter, grandson,
granddaughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, first cousin, nephew, niece, husband, wife, father-in-
law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter,

stepbrother, stepsister, half-brother, half-sister or domestic partner.

30



Job Description - A formal written description providing information about and specific
requirements for positions in the Town government service.

Lay-Off - Involuntary non-disciplinary separation of an employee from a position.

Position - Any office or employment whether occupied or vacant, full-time or part-time, consisting
of duties and responsibilities assigned to one individual by competent authority.

Prohationary Periods - The working test of a trial period of employment, beginning with the date
of employee's first appointment to an employment position as defined in Article 8.

Promotion - Assignment of an employee from one position to another which has higher rate of
pay.

Supervisor - An employee who has been designated to oversee a particular function within a
department and one who acts on behalf of the Department Head.

System - means all telephones, computers, facsimile machines, voicemail, e-mail, and other
electronic communication, copying or data storage systems or equipment leased, owned or in the
possession of the Town, including, but not limited to, any computer, computer system, or any
storage device or medium that the Town provides to an employee or that is physically or
electronically connected to any other part of the System. All parts of the System are owned by the
Town and/or are provided solely for use in the Town’s business activities. All Electronic
Communications are the Town’s property. The Town has the right and the ability to monitor and
review all Electronic Communications at any time without notice to its employees or any

other party and for any purpose whatsoever.

Transfer - Assignment of an employee from one position to another.

Article 39. Severability/Conflicting Actions
Section 1. Provisions

A. If any provision of the Personnel Rules and Regulations is held to be invalid by appropriate
judicial or other authority, such invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of
the Personnel Rules and Regulations, which can be given effect without the invalid provision
or application, and for this purpose, the provisions of these personnel policies are severable.
If any provision of these personnel policies is held invalid by reason of any conflict with
Federal or State law, the applicable law shall automatically become incorporated within the
Personnel Rules and Regulations in place of the invalid provisions,

B. Conflicting Actions: All actions and statements by the Board of Selectmen or other
authority in conflict with the Personnel Rules and Regulations are hereby repealed.

31



Article 40. Effective Date

The revised Rules and Regulations contained herein are effective June 14th, 2022.

Approved this day, 14" of June 2022 by the Bridgton Board of Selectmen.

Carmen E. Lone - Chairman

Glenn R. Zaidman — Vice-Chairman

Robert J. McHatton, Sr. — Selectman

Paul A. Tworog - Selectman

@G. Frederick Packard - Selectman

32

Witness




ADDENDUM #1
EARNED PAID LEAVE 26 MRS §637

Section 1: Application

These rules apply to employers that employ more than 10 employees in the usual and regular course
of business for more than 120 days in any calendar year, with certain exceptions. Covered
employers shall permit each employee to accrue earned paid leave based on the employee’s base
rate of pay. The effective date is January 1, 2021.

Section 2: Definitions

As sort forth in 26 MRS §637, the following terms have the following meanings.

A.
B.

C
D.
E

zZ g

“120 days” means calendar days (not business days).
“Base rate of pay.” The base rate of pay 1s identical to the regular rate of pay. The base rate
will be calculated by reference to the week immediately prior to the leave taken.

. “Burean” means the Bureau of Labor Standards.

“Calendar year” means January 1 through December 31 of any year.

. “Covered Employee.” A covered employee is a person engaged in employment as defined

in the Employment Security Act, 26 MRS 1043(11) for an employer as defined as 26 MRS
1043(9), except as otherwise set forth herein or in the Act Authorizing Earned Employee
Leave. A covered employee may include a person who is employed full-time, part-time or
per diem.

“Covered Employer,” A covered employer is an employer as defined in 26 MRS 1043(9)
who employs more than 10 covered employees in the usual and regular course of business
for more than 120 days in a calendar year.

“Emergency” and “sudden necessity,” which terms may be used interchangeably herein,
mean a situation in the need for leave is not reasonably foreseeable.

“Employer” has the same meaning as in 26 MRS § 1043(9).

“Employment” has the same meaning as in 26 MRS § 1043(11) but does not include
employment in a seasonal industry as defined in 26 MRS § 1251,

“Employment on a seasonal industry” means employment in an industry determined by the
Unemployment Insurance Commission to be seasonal pursuant to 26 MRS § 1251 and
employment for an employer who has submitted the required report to the Bureau of
Unemployment Compensation setting forth the seasonal period for the applicable year.
“Hours Worked.” For purposes of 26 MRS § 637(3), for covered employees defined as
exempt by federal regulations (29 CFR §541), in the absence of any other record, the
presumption is that hours worked by such employees are 40 hours per week.

“One-year period” means any period of 365 (366 in a leap year) consecutive days.

. “Start of Employment” means the first day the employce performed work for the Town.

“Year of employment” means a period of 365 (366 in a leap year) consecutive days
beginning with the employee’s start of employment, or any subsequent period of 365 (366
in a leap year) consecutive days beginning on one of the following:
a. The anniversary date of the employee’s start of employment; or
b. Such date as the employer may assign, provided that no loss of earned paid leave
results for any employee not using the date identified in a. above.

Section: 3: Accrual

33




An employee is entitled to earn one hour of earned paid leave for every 40 hours worked,
up to 40 hours in one year of employment as defined in Section 2.L herein.

Accrual of earned paid leave begins at the start of employment or anniversary date for
current employees, but the Town does not permit use of the leave before the employee has
been employed by the Town for 120 calendar days during a one-year period.

No more than forty hours of earned paid leave will be available for use by a Covered
Employee during any one-year period as established by Section 2.L. herein.

Covered Employees with accrued and unused hours of earned paid leave from the previous
year of employment will have those hours available for use by the employee in the current
year of employment, up to a maximum of 40 hours. Hours will only continue to accrue up
to forty hours in the current year of employment.

Employees will receive any unused, accrued earned paid leave up to 40 hours upon
termination of employment.

Section 4: Greater Benefits and Exception

A.

B.

Nothing in this chapter may be construed to affect the Town’s obligation to comply with
any collective bargaining agreement or employee benefit plan that provides greater earned
paid rights to employees than the rights provided by 26 MRS § 637.

26 MRS § 637 does not apply to an employee covered by a collective bargaining agreement
during the period between January 1, 2021, and the expiration of the agreement.

Section 5: Notice and Use of Leave

A.

Reasonable Notice. Absent an emergency, illness, or other sudden necessity for taking
earned paid leave, earned paid leave shall be granted at such time or times as shall be
mutually agreeable to the employee and the Department Head, except use shall not disrupt
departmental operations.

. Requests for use of the leave shall be made in writing to the employee’s Department Head

for approval. Due consideration shall be given to an employee's sentority in regard to
scheduling earned paid leave.

In the case of an emergency, illness or other sudden necessity rendering a prior written
request impractical, employee shall notify the Department Head by telephone, email, or
text of the use of earned paid leave as soon as possible prior to use.

All uses of Earned Paid Leave shall be noted on the employee’s weekly timesheet.
Employees may use earned paid leave in increments of no less than one hour.

34




Recreation Trail Easement

On Land of Lakes Environmental Association,
Town of Bridgton, Cumberland County, Maine

Lakes Environmental Association, a Maine nonprofit corpotation with a mailing address of 230

Main Street, Bridgton, ME 04009 (heteinafter referred to as the "Grantot" which word is intended to

include jointly and severally, unless the context cleatly indicates otherwise, the above-named Grantor,
its successors and assigns),

GRANTS, with Quitclaim Covenant, as a gift, to The Town of Bridgton, a Maine Municipaft

Corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine, with a mailing address of 3 Chase St., Suite

1, Bridgton, ME 04009, (hereinafter referred to as the "HOLDER," which wotd shall, unless the =

context cleatly indicates otherwise, include the Holdet's successorts and assigns),

in perpetuity, a RECREATION TRAIL EASEMENT (the “Recreational Easement”) on a portion

of real property situated in the Town of Bridgton, Cumbetland County, Maine actoss the parcel(s).

granted to Grantor by deed from JPM Group, dated August 4th, 2014 and recorded at the Cumberland
County Registry of Deeds at Book 31685, Page 8 (the “Property™).

1 RECREATION PURPOSE

This Recreational FEasement is made exclusively for the following recreational purpose

(hereinafter the “Recreation Purpose”): T'o provide non-motorized recreational oppottunites for thé’
residents of and visitors to the Town of Bridgton and Pondicherry Park, including access to one or
more trails on abutting propetty owned by Holder and any other abutting or neatby property that may

have such trails now or in the future.

2. TRAIL, CORRIDOR

This Recteational Easement establishes a trail cotridor (hetcinafter referred to as the ™T'rail
Cotridot,"), being an irregular shaped corridor as described below and as depicted on Exhibit A,
attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference. The corridor begins at a %4” iron pipe placed
approximately at southern boundary of the Property approximately 77 feet from the south eastern pin

of the Holder’s property. From there it runs at an approximate azimuth of 339 degrees fot.

approximately 70 feet to another %" iron pipe. Then at an approximate azimuth of 69 degrees for
approximately 95 feet to a %" iron pipe placed at the eastern boundary of the Property. Then northerly
along the eastern boundaty of the Propetty for approximately 90 feet to a %4” iron pipe placed on the

eastern boundary of the Property. Then atan apptoximate azimuth of 248 degrees for 135 feet to ¥4

iron pipe. Then at an approximate azimuth of 161 degrees for 150 feet to an unmarked point at the
southern boundaty of the Propesty. Then easterly along the southetn boundaty of the Propetsty for
approximately 20 feet back to the otiginal starting point. All azimuths are magnetic as of April 15,
2022.

L



- Page 2 -

3. HorLpeER's RIGHTS

A, Holdet, is hereby granted the right to entet the Trail Corridor at any reasonable time
and in any reasonable manner that is consistent with the purposes hereof, including the right to enter

over any rights-of-way pertaining to the Trail Corridor, to exercise its rights under this Recreational
Easement.

B. Holder is granted the right to establish, and maintain unpaved trails on the Trail
Cotridotr. Holder is further granted the tight to construct, install, and maintain without limitation low-
impact outdoot recreational improvements on the Trail Corridor such as: steps; railings; bog bridging;
paved or unpaved ramps; bollards; tip rap; benches; batriers to discourage use by motorized vehicles
(except for mototized wheelchaits or other similar non-recreational vehicles); cairns; small unlighted

signs; and minor erosion control structures. Holdet’s construction and maintenance rights may be
delepated or assigned to another entity.

C. Holdet is granted the right to selectively cut, prune, and remove. trees, leaneis and ,
blowdowns on the Trail Corridor for safety and trail work purposes

D. Holder may assign this Recreational Fasement, but only upon prior written consent
of Grantor and only to an entity that, as a condition of transfer, agrees to uphold the Recreational
Putpose of this grant and satisfies the requirements of Section 1581(1) of Title 33 of the Maine Rewsed
Statutes Annotated, as amended (or successor provisions thereof).

E. In the event of any uncertainty or disagteement over the boundaries of the Trail

Corridor as depicted on Exhibit A, Holder may commission and pay for a survey in order to determine
said boundaries.

L. Holder is hereby granted the tight to enforce this Recreational Basement by
proceedings at law and in equity, including the right to requite the restoration of the Trail Cotridor to
a condition in compliance herewith. If a Court (or other decision maker chosen by mutual consent
of the patties) determines that this Recreational Easement has been breached by a party hereto or
his/het/its assigns, agents, employees, contractoss, invitees, licensees, permittees, tenants, guests, ot
lessees, the breaching party will reimburse the non-breaching pasty for any reasonable costs of
enforcement, including court costs, reasonable attorney's fees, and any other payments ordered by
such Coutt or decision-maker. Grantor is not responsible for injury to or change in the Trail Corridor
otiginating from outside of the Trail Corridor or Grantors abutting resetved land, or from natural
causes, such as, but not limited to, fire, flood, storm, earth movement, natural evolution of plant and
animal communities, or from any pxudent action taken by Grantor under emergency conditions to
prevent, abate, or mitigate significant injury to the Trail Cosridor resulting from such causes.

4, PuBric USE

Holder has the right to permit, and the Grantor agrees to tefrain from taking any action to
prohibit or discourage or to exact a fee for, non-mototized recreational use by the general public on



- Page 3 -

the Trail Cotridor, including, without limitation, walking, nature obsetvation, bicycling, snowshoeing,
and cross-country skiing.

This grant prohibits motorized vehicles of any nature on the Trail Corridor except: (a) in

connection with trail wotk by Holder or its authorized representatives, (b) in emergency
citcumstances, and (¢} by motorized wheelchaits ot other similar non-recreational vehicles. -

Holder has the right to require that public use is conducted in a manner that does not
unreasonably disturb plants, wildlife, or other lawful users of the Trail Corridor. Upon ptior written
notice to Grantor, Holder has the right to temporarily limit, restrict, or prohibit public use of all or
any part of the Trail Corridor and to close and reroute trails to assure safety or for maintenance
purposes; provided, however, this right does not grant Holder any rights to use other land of Grantor’s
outside of the Trail Cotridor. Nothing herein should be construed to prohibit Grantor from using the
Trail Cottidor in common with public recreational users, as a member of the general public, and in
accordance with the rules and regulations for general public use, provided that such use shall not
unteasonably intetfere with the public uses contemplated hereunder.

5. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A, This Recreational Easement maybe extinguished or terminated only by written agreement
of the Holder and Grantor.

v

B. This Recreational Easement may be amended only by written agreement of the Holder
and Grantot, provided that Holder determines in its sole and exclusive judgment that the
amendment furthers or is not inconsistent with the Recreation Purpose of this Easement, as stated -
hereinabove. In particular, Holder and Grantor may amend the easement to relocate all or any

pottions of the Trail Corridor provided that such new location reasonably provides connections
with the trails on Holder’s abutting parcel.

C. This Recreational Basement is cteated pursuant to the Maine Trail Basement Act at Title
33, MR.S.A. Sections 1581 thtough 1585, as amended. This Recreational Easement is not mtended
to be construed as a conservation easement pursuant to Title 33 M.R.S.A. Section 476 ¢f seq.

D. The interpretation and performance of this Recreational Fasement shall be governed by
the laws of the State of Maine. Any general sule of construction to the contrary notwithstanding,
this Recreational Easement shall be liberally construed in favor of the grant to effect the
Recreational Putposes of this Easement. If any provision in this instrument is found to be

ambiguous, an intetpretation consistent with the Recreational Purpose of this Recreational
Easement shall govern.

E. Holder is tesponsible for obtaining all necessaty permits for trail construction and
maintenance.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lakes Envitonmental Association, has caused these plesents to be

signed and sealed by , its Hxecutive Director -, this day of
, 2022.




- Page 4 -

Signed Sealed and Delivered
In the Presence of

Lakes Environmental Association

Witness By:
Its: Executive Director
STATE OF MAINE
COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND _ Date:
Personally appeared before me the above-named , Executive Director of Lakes

Environmental Association, and acknowledged the foregoing to be his/her free act and deed in
his/her said capacity and the free act and deed of said Lakes Environmental Association.

Before me,

Notary Public/ Attorney

Please type or print name of notary
My commission expires:



- Page 5 -

HOLDER ACCEPTANCE.

The above and foregoing Recreation T'rail Easement was authotized to be accepted by the Town of
Bridgton, Holder as aforesaid, and the said Holder does hereby accept the foregoing Recreation Trail

BEasement, by and through , its Town Manager, hereunto duly authorized, this
day of , 2022,

Town of Bridgton

, Its Town Manager

STATE OF MAINE
COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND , 2022

Personally appeared , Town Manager and authorized representative of the
above-named Holder, Town of Bridgton., and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his/het
free act and deed in his/her said capacity, and the free act and deed of said corporation.

Before me,

Notaty Public

(Please type or print name of notary)
My commission expites:



Recreation Trail Easement

On Land of Lakes Environmental Association,
Town of Bridgton, Cumberland County, Maine

EXHIBIT A

A Skerch Plan of the Trail Corridor

jualased rroT

9EOE Siedl DS
dew aseg Aupydipucd

yigd ALUipuog jo dely aseg
UNIN0 Yied ALRydipuod
syesf jied ALsydipuod

HooT



Jded AusyoIpuod Jo dejy 3seg

‘uollewJsoul Aiepunoq
Joj uo paljal ag o1 10U
pue Aanuns jeuoissaioid

B 10N "'0Z0¢ 40

se payoidap eiep [iedl yled
Aliayoipuod “(Aemanlip
ISTIAL Ul) Jeudod
1samyanos e adid ou si
2133 :uondaoxs auo yum
adid uodi % yum paylew
SJOUJ0D JuBWSSeT 1SaloN

auIjIno jied Ausydipuod
s|ied] jaed AuLydipuod
9T0T S11edl DSTIN

Jd

jusiuasey ZoT

JOPLLI0D |1e4] 3Y3 Jo ueld Yyo3ays Y 1V HqIyx3




v g ' -« o .
1. Organization Name: St J‘Qﬁff’h > meh T W"mf"’)ﬁ C/“-L)
f

Organization Number: vV F 0 2y / ? Federal Tax ID # (EIN):

Business Address: 1 %—51:)0%’5 Churah H?:ﬂ// e = /f({?ﬁ S’f

City: Errd ﬂ’f‘on state: VE__ zipCode 09007

Cl\mft)\ D'ﬁq?ﬁ‘
Mailing Address: 717? ,ﬁc)_s’ftﬂ////t’ /?Ca - Phone: <07~ 7143~ 2606
City: "gf‘/ 0‘? 7L9'H State: E Zip Code: 0900 G

2. Current Officers:

7 Fomas Leonard - Fresiderd- 179 Fosteru/fe }6’ Erdgton ME 07 207 ’7’63 -I522 /R
NAME & TITLE ADDRESS T CITY/ZIP PHONE  DATE TERM EXPIRES
NAME & TITLE ADDRESS CITY/ZIP PHONE  DAIE TERM EXPIRES
NAME & TITLE ADDRESS CITY/ZIP PHONE  DATE TERM EXPIRES
NAME & TITLE ADDRESS CITY/ZIP PHONE  DATE TERM EXPIRES

3. Location where Beano/Bingo is to be conducted:
St Josep)y Church 225 S, /7‘}5}1 o /gk/dgﬁn HWE 0407
BUILDING * ADDRESS CITY/ZIP
4. Person responsible for conduct of Beano/Bingo:
T hornas  Leonardd 20746 8-1522
NAME DAYTIME PHONE & EVENING PHONE
E-Mail Address: /ﬁOVJC’Lf‘GZ RA05/ e ﬁi’)’?Q//e O
MGCU - 5000 Page 2|4

Revised 08/01/2019



5." Circle the day(s) of the week you will be conducting Beano/Bingo:

Mon Tue Wed @ Fri Sat Sun

2,0 20 Fmm
6. What time do the doors open? 5 Eit What time does the game start? b

7. Dates — Please specify the dates of the Bingo Occasion(s). If more space is needed, please attach a separate
sheet of paper with this information on it.

7-7-2 F -2

7-1% 2 F~//- 22

7~ 2/~ 232 5’~)9.—;2;2

[~ AB-22 P-R5-22

8. Does the organization own all the equipment used in operating Beano/Bingo? YesE No[]

If “NO”, Attach a sheet of paper to this application explaining the circumstances under which the
equipment was acquired. Please write your organization name and number on the sheet.

9. Has any current officer of the organization or association ever been convicted of or have any charges
currently pending for violating the gambling or lottery laws of the United States or the State of Maine?

Yes[] N(?Ef

If “YES” attach a sheet of paper to this application providing the person’s name, address, and date and

place of conviction or date and location of pending charge. Please write your organization name and number on
the sheet.

10. Does the organization have any delinquent / outstanding Disposition of Funds Reports? Yes[_] Nﬁ

If “YES” include all reports with this application. If the reports are not included, this application is
considered incomplete.

MGCU - 5000 Page 3|4
Revised 08/01/2019



11 Fair Association Only: Attach a list of the names and home addresses of the persons operating or
assisting in the registered activity. Please write your organization name and number on the list.

12. The following consent must be completed by the municipal officers of the city or town where the
Beano/Bingo will take place unless a separate “Letter of Approval” is attached to this application.

[[] Check here if you have attached a “Letter of Approval.” Letters that have an expiration date of greater
than five years from the issue date will not be accepted by this office

Municipal Consent to Register

The undersigned municipal officers of the City/Town of hereby certify that we
consent to the registration by to operate Beano/Bingo in accordance with
the provisions of 17 M.R.S.A. Chapter 13-A and in accordance with the Rules promulgated by the State of
Maine, Department of Public Safety, Gambling Control Unit governing the operation of Beano/Bingo.

Name:
Date: Title:
Name:
Date: Title:
Name:
Date: Title:
Name:
Date: Title:

13. The applicant agrees to obey Federal, State of Maine laws, and rules governing Beano/Bingo promulgated
by the Department of Public Safety, Gambling Control Unit. The applicant warrants the truth of the
foregoing statements on penalty of perjury.

Signed: _%W M

Print Name: [ horma s Lﬁémayaj Title: Ff’?‘i/df»j’.

Date: 5-4 522& Age 18 or older: Yew No[]

MGCU - 5000 Page 4|4
Revised 08/01/2019



TOWN OF BRIDGTON

TO: Board of Selectmen
FROM: Laurie L. Chadbourne, Town Clerk
RE: Dog Days of Bridgton

DATE: June 9, 2022

June 14™ Select Board Meeting

Nate Sunday has applied for use of the Depot Street Parking Lot near the Bridgton Community Center
for a Dog Days of Bridgton Event on August 20, 2022 (application attached).

The application was approved as submitted with notation (if applicable):

X1 Code Enforcement Department — food trucks must obtain a permit through the CEO
X1 Fire Department

Police Department
Public Services Department

X! Town Clerk’s Department — food trucks must obtain a Victualer’s License
XITown Manager’s Department

Bridgton Community Center, Downeast and The Magic Lantern all support the event (see attached
email communication).

Town Clerk’s Office * 3 Chase Street, Suite |, Bridgton, MY 04009 * Ichadbourne@bridgtonmaine.org




TOWN OF BRIDGTON, MAINE
3 Chase Street, Suite 1, Bridgton, ME 04009

Application/Agreement to Use Bridgton Park and/or Property
Please fill out and return

INFORMATION ABOUT APPLICANT & LOCAL CONTACT PERSON
Applicant’s Name: __Tasteful Things Tel # 207-677-0782  e.mail _oils@tastefulthingsme.com

Applicant’s Mailing Address: 8 Depot Street, Bridaton, ME 04009

Local Contact Name; _Carole Sunday Tel # 207-577-0783 g.majl Msunday@maine.rr.com

Local Contact Mailing Address: _PO Box 492, Casco, ME 04015

Other Contact Information: _Nate Sunday /207-577-0782

INFORMATION ABOUT PROPOSED EVENT
Place of Event: Bridgton CC - outside

Date of Event: August 20, 2022Hours of Event: _1-4 p.m.
Type of Event; _Dog Days of Bridgton Number of Participants; _around 250

Structures (tents, chairs, etc,) tables, canopies, chairs

Food and Beverages to be served: _1BD —~WoRive 7o BrNG /i (-2 [fooh TRUCKS
Entertainment: SEseey /st e apad STRA 714D
Signage Posters

Provisions for Cleanup/Litter: Applicant/sponsor will clean up/dumpster/trash can provided by Bridgton CC

Provisions for Parking: _parking lot

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED

Certificate of Liability Insurance:_attached

Insurance Agent/Company ___Oberg Insurance

Additional Information to Applicant




S Mg

‘c'.'e-“SM O, mNi ALNTON '
BROOY )

ST‘E\/E. N <

ey

-




Laurie Chadbourne

From: Carmen Lone <carmen.bcc@ne.twebe.com> i
Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2022 10:17 AM ¥
To: Laurie Chadbourne

Cc: Robert "Baob" Peabody, Jr.

Subject;

RE: Community Center

Thank you for asking. This is a recurring annual event. Nate has already made arrangements with the BCC,

Yes, we are ;
ok with the plan. 3
Thanks, N
Carmen

From: Laurie Chadbourne <ichadbourne@hridgtonmaine,org>
Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2022 9:24 AM

To: Carmen Lone <carmen.bcc@ne. twebe.coms

Cc: Robert "Bob" Peabody, Jr. <rpeabody@bridgtonmaine.org>
Subject; Community Center

Importance: High

Hi Carmen,

Nate Sunday from Tasteful Things has submitted an application for use of town owned property on August 20, 2022 - ’f

from 1PM-4PM for a Dog Days Event with about 250 people expected to attend. The request is to use the Depot Street-; _
Parking Lot (see diagram below}): :




Laurie Chadbourne

From: frank howell <frank@downeastinnovation.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2022 12:35 PM

To: Laurie Chadbourne

Subject: RE: Down East

That is not an issue for us on that date.
Thank you for checking!

Regards,

f.

Frank Howell

207.647.5443 /
207.557.2526 (cell)

Down East Innovation, llc
Down East, Inc.
Herg Be Dragons, llc

SnapDragon, lic — -

-sent from my cell-

~~~~~~~~ Original message ~~------

Fromu Laurie Chadbourne <lchadbourne@bridgtonmaine.org>
Date: 5/26/22 9:23 AM {GMT-05:00)

To: frank@downeastinnovation.com, web@downeastinc.com

Cc: "Robert "Bob" Peabody, Ir." <rpeabody@bridgtonmaine.org>
Subject: Down East '

Hi Frank,

Nate Sunday from Tastefui Things has submitted an application for use of town owned property on August 20, 2022

from 1PM-4PM for a Dog Days Event with about 250 people expected to atiend. The request is fo use the Depot Street
Parking Lot (see diagram below}:



Laurie Chadbourne

From: Susan Jennings <susan.jennings@maine.edu>
Sent: _ Thursday, May 26, 2022 3:47 PM
"To: Laurie Chadbourne
Subject: Re; Magic Lantern
Hi Laurie,

We are fine with the event. It is a fun and very cute event.
Some of our staff went last year.
Susan

Susan Jennings

Executive Director, Maine 4-H Foundation
UMaine Cooperative Extension Professor
York Complex # 1

Orono, Maine 04469

Tel: 207-615-7300

On Thu, May 26, 2022 at 9:25 AM Laurie Chadbourne <|chadbourne @bridgtonmaine.org> wrote:

" Hi Susan,

v ABE

- Nate Sunday from Tasteful Things has submitted an application for use of town owned property on August 20, 2022

¢ from 1PM-4PM for a Dog Days Event with about 250 people expected to attend. The request is to use the Depot Street
. Parking Lot {see diagram below):

34



TOWN OF BRIDGTON

TO: Board of Selectmen MEMO

FROM: Laurie L. Chadbourne, To ' lerk
RE: Business Licenses
DATE: June 9, 2022 Q

4

June 14™ Select Board Meeting

9b4a. Ricky’s Diner
257 Main Street
Victualer’s License (renewal)
CEO [X] Fire [X] Police XI Town Clerk

9b4b. The Gazebo
56 Portland Road
Victualer’s License (renewal)
CEO [ Fire X Police Xl Town Clerk

9b4c. The Black Horse Tavern
26 Portland Road
Victualer’s License (renewal)
CEO Fire [X] Police Town Clerk

9b5. Sweet Dirt
1 Beaver Creek Farm Road

Marijuana Establishment License for an Adult Use Marijuana Store (new)
CEO [X] Fire [X] Police [X] Town Clerk

Complete applications are on file at the Town Clerk’s Office and available for Select Board review.

Town Clerk’s Office * 3 Chase Street, Suite 1, Bridgton, ME 04009 * Ichadbourne@bridgtonmaine.org




